VI.

VIRGINIA BOARD
FOR
WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER WORKS OPERATORS
AND ONSITE SEWAGE SYSTEM PROFESSIONALS

Tentative AGENDA THURSDAY, October 27, 2022
9:30 A.M. BOARD ROOM 2-- SECOND FLOOR

DEPARTMENT OF PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL
REGULATION PERIMETER CENTER -- 9960 MAYLAND DRIVE
RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23233

CALL TO ORDER
EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURES

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
a. Board Agenda, October 27, 2022

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Board Meeting Minutes, July 14, 2022
b. OSSP Licensing Regulatory Review Committee Meeting Minutes, October 3, 2022

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - Five-minute public comment, per person, on those items
not included on the agenda with the exception of any open disciplinary files.

CASE FILES

a. File Number 2022-00354, Richard Wade Malcolm
Prima Facie—(Fore)

b. File Number 2022-01131, William Matthew Smith
Prima Facie—(Duncan)

c. File number 2022-01133, Larry Woodford Madison Jr.
Consent Order—(Duncan)

d. File Number 2022-01151, George Junior Lawson
Consent Order—(Duncan)

e. File Number 2022-01130, William Irvin Vernon, 11
Consent Order—(Brockwell)

f.  File Number 2022-00819, Alexis Emily Jones
Consent Order—(Pruett)

g. File Number 2022-01936, Michael Lee Thomas Jr.
Consent Order—(Ewing, Pruett)

h. File Number 2022-02062, Ramze Yaxyah Mohamed
Licensing—IFF by Jackson-Bailey

i. File Number 2022-02613, Donald Gerald Coles
Licensing—IFF by Jackson-Bailey



j-  File Number 2020-02614, Theodore Jason Lynch
Licensing—IFF by Jackson-Bailey

VIl.  REGULATORY ACTIONS
a. Regulatory Action Update
b. Update on OSSP Licensing Regulatory Review Committee
c. Discussion on General Review of WWWO Licensing Regulations
i.  Consider Authorizing Formation of Regulatory Review Committee
ii. Consider Authorizing Notice of Intended Regulatory Action to Initiate
Regulatory Review Process
VII. OTHER BUSINESS
a. Update on Board Guidance from the Board for Contractors Regarding Well
Abandonment
b. Overview of Regulatory Review Process
i. Overview of DPOR’s Unified Regulatory Plan
c. WWWO 2022 CPE Audit Report
d. OSSP 2022 CPE Audit Report
e. Examination updates
i. Examination Statistics Report
f. VAMWA and VMDWA Correspondence
g. Update on Education and Training Committee
i. University of FL Training, Research and Education for Environmental
Occupations
1. Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations C&B Training Course
h. Board Financial Statement
i. Update on Outreach Opportunities
j. Election of Officers
k. Report from the 2022 Board Member Training Conference
I.  Other Business

IX. FUTURE MEETING DATES
a. January 26, 2023

b. April 20, 2023

c. July 27,2023

d. October 19, 2023

X.  COMPLETE CONFLICT OF INTEREST FORMS AND TRAVEL VOUCHERS
Xl. ADJOURN
Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpretative services should
contact the Department at (804) 367-0362 at least ten days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be

made for an appropriate accommodation. The Department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act

** Agenda materials made available to the public do not include disciplinary case files or application files pursuant
to §54.1-108 of the Code of Virginia.



PERIMETER CENTER CONFERENCE CENTER
EMERGENCY EVACUATION OF BOARD AND TRAINING ROoOMS
(Script to be read at the beginning of each meeting.)

PLEASE LISTEN TO THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS ABOUT EXITING THE PREMISES IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY.

In the event of a fire or other emergency requiring the evacuation of the building, alarms will sound.
When the alarms sound, leave the room immediately. Follow any instructions given by Security staff

Board Room 1
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the room, turn RIGHT. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Board Room 2
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. (Point) Upon exiting the room, turn RIGHT. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

You may also exit the room using the side door, turn Right out the door and make an immediate Left. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Board Rooms 3 and 4
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the room, turn RIGHT. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Training Room 1
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the room, turn LEFT. Follow the corridor
to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Training Room 2
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the doors, turn LEFT. Follow the corridor
to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.



VIRGINIA BOARD FOR
WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER WORKS OPERATORS AND ONSITE SEWAGE
SYSTEM PROFESSIONALS

MINUTES OF MEETING

The Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage
System Professionals met on July 14, 2022, at the offices of the Department of Professional and

Occupational Regulation (DPOR), Perimeter Center, 9960 Mayland Drive, 2" Floor, Board
Room 4, Richmond, Virginia 23233.

The following members of the Board were present:

James N. Brockwell

Erica Duncan

W. Jordan Evans
John Ewing

Thomas Wayne Fore, Vice Chair
Pamela M. Pruett, Chair

Dwayne Roadcap

D. Wayne Staples
Caleb Taylor

Board members Rosa-Lee Cooke and Don Riggleman were not present at the meeting.

DPOR staff present for all or part of the meeting included:

Demetrios J. Melis, Director
Kishore Thota, Chief Deputy Director
Trisha L. Lindsey, Executive Director
Shannon Webster, Director of Examinations
Tanya M. Pettus, Board Administrator
Joseph C. Haughwout, Jr., Board and Regulatory Administrator
Breanne Henshaw, Administrative Coordinator

Joshua Laws from the Office of the Attorney General was present at the meeting.

Ms. Pruett, Chair, finding a quorum of the Board present, called the meeting to Call to Order
order at 9:30 a.m.

Ms. Pettus advised the Board of the emergency evacuation procedures. Emergency

Evacuation
Procedures



Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals

July 14, 2022
Page 2 of 7

Ms. Pettus corrected the Board agenda date from April 21, 2022 to July 14, 2022.
Mr. Fore moved to approve the agenda as amended. Mr. Staples seconded the
motion, which was unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing,
Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

Mr. Fore moved to approve the minutes of the April 21, 2022, Board meeting and
the June 29, 2022, OSSP Licensing Regulatory Review Committee meeting as
presented. Mr. Evans seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved by:
Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

There were no members of the public present who wished to address the Board.

Ms. Pettus introduced Jennifer Sayegh, DPOR’s new Policy and Legislative
Affairs Manager, and Breanne Henshaw, Administrative Coordinator. Ms. Pettus
informed the Board that Ms. Lindsey and Mr. Melis would be arriving at the
meeting later.

Mr. Ewing recused himself from the meeting for discussion and deliberation of
File Number 2022-01145.

In the matter of File Number 2022-01145, Richard Sheldon Gibson, the Board
members reviewed the Consent Order. Mr. Gibson admits to a violation of
18VAC160-40-470.3 as outlined in Count 1, and consents to the imposition of
Board costs of $150.00. In addition, Mr. Gibson agrees to revocation of his Master
Conventional Onsite Sewage System Installer license. Mr. Fore moved to approve
the Consent Order as presented. Mr. Staples seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap,
Staples, and Taylor.

Mr. Ewing returned to the meeting.

In the matter of File Number 2022-01197, Curtis James Corns, the Board
members reviewed the record which consisted of the application file, transcript,
and exhibits from the Informal Fact-Finding Conference, and the Presiding
Officer's Summary and Recommendation. Mr. Evans moved to accept the
recommendation of the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Corns' application for a
Class 2 Waterworks Operator license. Mr. Fore seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett,
Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

Mr. Corns was present at the Board meeting and thanked the Board.

Approval of
Agenda

Approval of
Minutes

Public Comment
Period

Introduction of
Staff

Recusal of Board
Member

File Number 2022-
01145, Richard
Sheldon Gibson

Return of Board
Member

File Number 2022-
01197, Curtis
James Corns
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In the matter of File Number 2022-01455, Adam Girard Messier, the Board
members reviewed the record which consisted of the application file, transcript,
and exhibits from the Informal Fact-Finding Conference, and the Presiding
Officer's Summary and Recommendation. Mr. Staples moved to accept the
recommendation of the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Messier’s application
for a Class 4 Wastewater Operator license. Mr. Taylor seconded the motion which
was unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett,
Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

In the matter of File Number 2022-00046, Daniel Lee Gray, the Board members
reviewed the record which consisted of the application file, transcript, and exhibits
from the Informal Fact-Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer's Summary
and Recommendation. Mr. Evans moved to accept the recommendation of the
Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Gray’s application for a Journeyman
Conventional Installer license. Mr. Ewing seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett,
Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

In the matter of File Number 2022-00525, Brandon Alexander Lofton, the
Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the application file,
transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-Finding Conference, and the
Presiding Officer's Summary and Recommendation.

Mr. Lofton was present to address the Board. Mr. Lofton indicated he would like
an opportunity to practice in the profession in order to move forward with his life.

Mr. Fore moved to accept the recommendation of the Presiding Officer and
approve Mr. Lofton’s application for a Class 3 Wastewater Works Operator
license. Mr. Brockwell seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

In the matter of File Number 2022-00871, Louis Wayne Braxton Jr., the Board
members reviewed the record which consisted of the application file, transcript,
and exhibits from the Informal Fact-Finding Conference, and the Presiding
Officer's Summary and Recommendation. Mr. Evans moved to accept the
recommendation of the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Braxton’s application
for a Class 2 Wastewater Works Operator license. Mr. Staples seconded the
motion which was unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing,
Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

In the matter of File Number 2022-00999, Donald Wesley Johnston, the Board
members reviewed the record which consisted of the application file, transcript,
and exhibits from the Informal Fact-Finding Conference, and the Presiding
Officer's Summary and Recommendation. Mr. Fore moved to accept the
recommendation of the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Johnston’s application

File Number 2022-
01455, Adam
Girard Messier

File Number 2022-
00046, Daniel Lee

Gray

File Number 2022-
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Alexander Lofton

File Number 2022-
00871, Louis
Wayne Braxton
Jr.

File Number 2022-
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for a Class 4 Wastewater Works Operator license contingent upon completion of
the Department of Corrections (DOC) Apprenticeship Program, meeting all entry
requirements contained in the Board’s regulations, and passing the applicable
examination.. Mr. Taylor seconded the motion which was unanimously approved
by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

In the matter of File Number 2022-01297, Christopher David Lugiano, the
Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the application file,
transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-Finding Conference, and the
Presiding Officer's Summary and Recommendation. Mr. Fore moved to accept the
recommendation of the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Lugiano’s application
for a Class 4 Wastewater Works Operator license. Mr. Brockwell seconded the
motion which was unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing,
Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

In the matter of File Number 2022-00505, Adam French, the Board members
reviewed the record which consisted of the application file, transcript, and exhibits
from the Informal Fact-Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer's Summary
and Recommendation. Mr. Staples moved to accept the recommendation of the
Presiding Officer and approve Mr. French’s application for a Class 4 Wastewater
Works Operator license. Mr. Ewing seconded the motion which was unanimously
approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples,
and Taylor.

Mr. Haughwout provided an update on the current status of the regulatory review
processes for the Board’s regulatory packages:

Amendments regarding 2021 fee adjustments for Waterworks and Wastewater
Works Operators Licensing Regulations and Onsite Sewage System Professionals
Licensing Regulations are currently in the proposed stage as the Board reviewed
and adopted the proposed amendments at the April 21, 2022, Board meeting.
Submission of the amendments for Executive Branch review is pending.

A Notice of Intended Regulatory Action (NOIRA) was filed on October 28, 2021,
in order to complete a General Review of the Onsite Sewage System Professionals
Licensing Regulations. The NOIRA is currently undergoing Executive Branch
review, after which a 30-day public comment period will be held.

Mr. Haughwout gave an update regarding the OSSP Licensing Regulatory Review
Committee. The Committee reviewed entry and examination requirements,
definitions, and potential legislative proposals at its June meeting.

Board members who serve on the Committee shared that they are completing a
line-by-line review of the regulations as they work to reduce regulations by 25%
per the Governor’s Executive Directive, as well as maintaining regulations

File Number 2022-
01297,
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relevant to licensed professions, while also providing clarity to sections of the
regulations where required.

Ms. Pettus provided a report on the 2022 waterworks operator CPE audit. The
audit began on June 1, 2022 based on a random selection of 5% of current
licensees.

Ms. Pettus provided the Board with waterworks and wastewater works
examination statistics from January 1, 2017 through June 27, 2022, and April 21,
2022 through June 27, 2022, as well as onsite examination statistics from January
1, 2021, to June 30, 2022, for informational purposes.

Ms. Webster advised the Board that the agency is working to offer exams in
Spanish for those professions in which a need has been determined. Ms. Webster
is currently working with PSI on potentially translating the six onsite
examinations. Discussion was held on the costs and time requirements of
implementing a Spanish language exam, as well as the parameters used to
determine the need for such an exam and the potential for translations for other
languages.

Discussion was also held on the possibility of offering water and wastewater
exams in Spanish.

The Board discussed the feedback received in regards to the waterworks and
wastewater works examinations as there are individuals who have expressed
concern regarding the difficulty of the exam. Discussion was also held on the
pass/fail information provided to the individuals who have taken the exam. The
Board inquired as to whether it is possible to compile a report of the most common
areas of weakness on the exam. Ms. Webster advised she would work with ABC
to collect the data and provide an update at the next Board meeting.

The Board recessed from 10:44 a.m. to 11:19 a.m. Mr. Melis and Ms. Lindsey
arrived to the meeting during the recess.

Ms. Lindsey presented the Board with six draft legislative proposals for the Board
to consider putting forward as part of DPOR’s 2023 legislative package.

Discussion was held on technical changes to definitions and licensure references,
as well as changes to the Board’s composition.

After lengthy discussion and review of the draft legislative proposals, Mr. Fore
moved to approve the proposals for submission as amended. Mr. Ewing seconded
the motion which was unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans,
Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor.

WWWO 2022
CPE Audit Report

Examination
Updates —
Examination
Statistics Report

Recess and Arrival
of Staff

Discussion of
Potential
Legislative
Proposals
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Ms. Lindsey provided the Board with the most recent financial statements for
review.

Ms. Lindsey and Ms. Pettus advised the Board of recent and upcoming outreach
opportunities.

Ms. Pettus informed the Board of Mr. Fore’s recognition from VRWA at its
annual conference held in April. Mr. Fore received the Friend of Rural Water
award. The Board congratulated Mr. Fore on his achievement.

Ms. Lindsey advised the Board of the upcoming Board Member Training

Conference, which will occur on October 13 — October 14, 2022 in Williamsburg.

Ms. Lindsey advised the Board that the Board for Contractors is completing
regulatory review of the contractor regulations and she will keep the Board
informed of any potential changes to regulations that may have an effect on the
WWWOOSSP Board’s regulations.

Discussion was held on whether a license is required for portable toilet operators.
Ms. Lindsey explained that licensure with the Board is not required, but it may be
necessary for the operator to hold a permit or other credentialbased on other state
or local requirements.

Ms. Lindsey reminded the Board that the next scheduled meeting date is October
27, 2022.

Ms. Pruett reminded the Board members to complete and return their conflict of
interest forms and travel vouchers.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:24 p.m.

Board Financial
Statements

Update on
Outreach

Opportunities

2022 Board
Member Training
Conference

Other Business

Future Meeting
Dates

Complete Conflict
of Interest Forms
and Travel
Vouchers

Adjourn

Pamela M. Pruett, Chair
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Demetrios Melis, Secretary



ONSITE SEWAGE SYSTEM PROFESSIONALS LICENSING REGULATORY
REVIEW COMMITTEE
OF THE
BOARD FOR WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER WORKS OPERATORS AND
ONSITE SEWAGE SYSTEM PROFESSIONALS

MINUTES OF MEETING

The Onsite Sewage System Professionals (OSSP) Licensing Regulatory Review Committee of
the Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System
Professionals (Board) met on October 3, 2022, at the Department of Professional and
Occupational Regulation (DPOR), 9960 Mayland Drive, 2" Floor, Board Room 4, Richmond,
Virginia 23233.

The following members were present:

James Brockwell
John Ewing
Thomas Fore

Pamela Pruett, Ex-officio
Ronnie Thomas

Committee members Bryan Allen, W. Jordan Evans, and Adrian Joye
were not present at the meeting.

DPOR staff present for all or part of the meeting included:

Trisha L. Lindsey, Executive Director
Stephen Kirschner, Licensing and Regulatory Programs Division Deputy Director
Tanya M. Pettus, Board Administrator
Joseph C. Haughwout, Jr., Board and Regulatory Administrator
Lisa Robinson, Licensing Administrator
Raven Custer, Administrative Coordinator

Mr. Ewing called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m. Call to Order

Ms. Lindsey advised the Committee of the emergency evacuation Emergency

procedures. Evacuation
Procedures

Ms. Pruett and Mr. Thomas arrived at 10:06 a.m. Arrival of Board
Members

Mr. Fore moved to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. Brockwell Approval of Agenda
seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by: Brockwell,




OSSP Licensing Regulatory Review Committee
WWWOOSSP Board

Minutes of Meeting

October 3, 2022

Page 2 of 3

Ewing, Fore, Pruett, and Thomas.

There were no members of the public present who wished to address the
Committee.

Mr. Haughwout presented the Committee with current versions of
applicable laws and regulations, licensing data, and onsite sewage
system  licensing requirements from other states for informational
purposes.

Ms. Lindsey shared a presentation with the Committee regarding the
changes to the regulatory review process that took effect on August 1,
2022.

Mr. Haughwout presented the Committee with draft proposed
amendments to Parts VI through V111 of the Onsite Sewage System
Professionals Regulations, for review and consideration.

Discussion was held on proposed amendments to current license
renewal and reinstatement requirements.

The Committee discussed current continuing professional education
requirements.

After discussion, Ms. Pruett moved to retain current continuing
professional education requirements, as they are necessary to ensure
minimal competence and integrity to engage in the profession, and to
protect the health, safety and welfare of the public. Mr. Fore seconded
the motion which was unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Ewing,
Fore, Pruett, and Thomas

Ms. Lindsey introduced to the Board Licensing and Regulatory
Programs Division Deputy Director, Stephen Kirschner.

The Committee recessed from 11:26 a.m. to 11:49 a.m.

Discussion was held on acceptable continuing education subject matter.
The Committee discussed accepting electrical training towards
continuing professional education. The Committee agreed by consensus

that some electrical training could be accepted toward CPE
requirements

Public Comment
Period

Resources and
Information

Overview of
Changes to the
Requlatory Review
Process

Discussion of
Regulatory Review

Topics

Introduction of Staff

Recess

Discussion of
Requlatory Review
Topics Continued
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The Committee reviewed draft proposed amendments to current
requirements for training providers.

Mr. Haughwout presented the Committee with revised amendments to
Parts I through V as determined at the June 2022 meeting for review.

Ms. Lindsey advised the Committee of the regulatory review topics for
its next meeting, which will include standards of conduct and practice.

Ms. Lindsey advised the Committee that staff will provide dates for
consideration by Committee members for the next meeting. The
Committee will be notified of the date when it has been confirmed.

Mr. Ewing reminded the Committee members to complete their conflict
of interest forms and travel vouchers.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:50
p.m.

Pamela M. Pruett, Chair

Demetrios J. Melis, Secretary

Review Draft
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Adjourn



PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Five minute public comment, per person, with the
exception of any open disciplinary or application files.



Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works
Operators and Onsite Sewage Systems
Professionals

Update on Regulatory Actions

(as of October 17, 2022)

Action: Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators Licensing
Regulations — 2021 Fee Adjustment

Current Stage: Proposed
e Board reviewed and adopted proposed amendment on 4/21/22.
e Submitted for Executive Branch review on 7/28/22. Currently in Executive Branch review.

Next Step: Executive Branch Review/Public Comment
e Completion of Executive Branch review.

e Publication in the Virginia Register and 60-day public comment period, to include public
hearing.

Action: Onsite Sewage System Professionals Licensing Regulations —
2021 Fee Adjustment

Current Stage: Proposed
e Board reviewed and adopted proposed amendment on 4/21/22.
e Submitted for Executive Branch review on 7/28/22. Currently in Executive Branch review.

Next Step: Executive Branch Review/Public Comment
e Completion of Executive Branch review.

e Publication in the Virginia Register and 60-day public comment period, to include public
hearing.

Action: Onsite Sewage System Professionals Licensing Regulations —
2022 General Review

Current Stage: NOIRA
Board authorized formation of regulatory review committee on 4/29/21.
Board authorized filing of NOIRA on 10/28/21.

Regulatory review committee formed. First meeting held on 3/28/22. Second meeting held on
6/29/22. Third meeting held on 10/3/22.

NOIRA submitted for Executive Branch review on 5/16/22. Executive Branch review
completed on 10/14/22.

Next Step: Executive Branch Review/Public Comment

¢ NOIRA to be submitted for publication in Virginia Register and open for 30-day public
comment.




UPDATE ON OSSP LICENSING
REGULATORY REVIEW
COMMITTEE




Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage
System Professionals

Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators Licensing Regulations

2023 General Regulatory Review

The following list of topics are items that have been discussed at Board meetings, presented to
staff, or identified by staff review, and that the Board may wish to consider during the general
review of the Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators Licensing Regulations. This list is
not inclusive of all items that the Board may present for amendment.

Overall
e Repeal provisions of the regulation that are out of date.

e Change appearances of “shall” to “must”, “will”, “may”, etc., as appropriate.
e  Amend regulations to provide clarity and to align with current practices and processes.

Definitions
e Review definitions.

Entry Requirements
e Review requirements for disclosure of criminal convictions for initial licensure.
e Review requirements for disclosure of disciplinary actions for initial licensure.
e Review training and experience requirements for waterworks and wastewater works
operator licenses.
e Review experience verification requirements.
e Review applicable requirements for individuals licensed in another state or jurisdiction.

Renewal and Reinstatement
e Review current requirements for continuing professional education for waterworks and
wastewater works operators.

Standards of Conduct and Practice

Review standards of conduct and practice.

Review supervision requirements.

Review prohibited acts outlined in 18 VAC 160-30-320.

Review licensee responsibilities outlined in 18 VAC 160-30-340.

Training Courses
e Review current training course requirements.




UPDATE ON BOARD FOR
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Office of Regulatory Management

Economic Review Form

Agency name

Virginia Administrative Code | _ VAC __ -
(VAC) Chapter citation(s)

VAC Chapter title(s)

Action title

Date this document prepared

Cost Benefit Analysis

Table 1a must be completed for all actions. Tables 1b and 1c must be completed for actions (or
portions thereof) where the agency is exercising discretion, including those where some of the
changes are mandated by state or federal law or regulation. Tables 1b and 1c are not needed

if all changes are mandated, and the agency is not exercising any discretion. In that case, enter a
statement to that effect.

(1) Direct Costs & Benefits: Identify all specific, direct economic impacts (costs and/or
benefits), anticipated to result from the regulatory change. (A direct impact is one that
affects entities regulated by the agency and which directly results from the regulatory
change itself, without any intervening steps or effects. For example, the direct impact of a
regulatory fee change is the change in costs for these regulated entities.) When describing
a particular economic impact, specify which new requirement or change in requirement
creates the anticipated economic impact. Keep in mind that this is the proposed change
versus the status quo. One bullet has been provided, add additional bullets as needed.

(2) Quantitative Factors:

(a) Enter estimated dollar value of total (overall) direct costs described above.
(b) Enter estimated dollar value of total (overall) direct benefits described above.
(c) Enter the present value of the direct costs based on the worksheet.

(d) Enter the present value of the direct benefits based on the worksheet.

(3) Benefits-Costs Ratio: Calculate d divided by ¢ OR enter it from the worksheet.

(4) Net Benefit: Calculate d minus ¢ OR enter it from the worksheet.

(5) Indirect Costs & Benefits: Identify all specific, indirect economic impacts (costs and/or
benefits), anticipated to result from the regulatory change. (An indirect impact is one that
results from responses to the regulatory change, but which are not directly required by the
regulation. Indirect impacts of a regulatory fee change on regulated entities could include
a change in the prices they charge, changes in their operating procedures or employment
levels, or decisions to enter or exit the regulated profession or market. Indirect impacts
also include responses by other entities that have close economic ties to the regulated
entities, such as suppliers or partners.) If there are no indirect costs or benefits, include a
specific statement to that effect.
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(6) Information Sources: Describe the sources of information used to determine the benefits
and costs, including the source of the Quantitative Factors. If dollar amounts are not
available, indicate why they are not.

(7) Optional: Use this space to add any further information regarding the data provided in
this table, including calculations, qualitative assessments, etc.

Table 1a: Costs and Benefits of the Proposed Changes (Primary Option)

(1) Direct Costs
& Benefits

Describe first proposed impactful change here.
Direct Costs: Describe the direct costs of this proposed change here.

Direct Benefits: Describe the direct benefits of this proposed change
here.

Use additional bullets as needed

(2) Quantitative
Factors

Estimated Dollar Amount Present Value

Direct Costs

(a)

(©)

Direct Benefits

(b)

(d)

(3) Benefits-
Costs Ratio

(4) Net
Benefit

(5) Indirect
Costs &
Benefits

(6) Information
Sources

(7) Optional

Table 1b: Costs and Benefits under the Status Quo (No change to the regulation)
This table addresses current requirements and the implications of not making any changes. In
other words, describe the costs and benefits of maintaining the current regulatory requirements

as is.
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(1) Direct Costs
& Benefits

Describe the current requirement associated with the first
proposed impactful change described in Table 1a here.

Direct Costs: Describe the direct cost of maintaining the current
requirement

Direct Benefits: Describe the direct benefits of maintaining the
current requirement

Use additional bullets as needed

(2) Quantitative
Factors

Estimated Dollar Amount Present Value

Direct Costs

(@)

(©)

Direct Benefits

(b)

(d)

(3) Benefits-
Costs Ratio

(4) Net
Benefit

(5) Indirect
Costs &
Benefits

(6) Information
Sources

(7) Optional

Table 1c: Costs and Benefits under an Alternative Approach

This table addresses an alternative approach to accomplishing the objectives with different
requirements. These alternative approaches may include the use of reasonably available
alternatives in lieu of regulation, or information disclosure requirements or performance
standards instead of regulatory mandates.

(1) Direct Costs
& Benefits

Describe first alternative proposed impactful change here.
Direct Costs: Describe the direct costs of this proposed change here.

Direct Benefits: Describe the direct benefits of this proposed change
here.
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e Use additional bullets as needed

(2) Quantitative
Factors

Estimated Dollar Amount

Present Value

Direct Costs

(a)

(©)

Direct Benefits

(b)

(d)

(3) Benefits-
Costs Ratio

(4) Net
Benefit

(5) Indirect
Costs &
Benefits

(6) Information
Sources

(7) Optional

Impact on Local Partners

(1) Describe the direct costs and benefits (as defined on page 1) for local partners in terms of
real monetary costs and FTEs. Local partners include local or tribal governments, school
divisions, or other local or regional authorities, boards, or commissions. If local partners
are not affected, include a specific statement to that effect and a brief explanation of the
rationale.

(2) Quantitative Factors:

(a) Enter estimated dollar value of total (overall) direct costs described above.
(b) Enter estimated dollar value of total (overall) direct benefits described above.

(3) Indirect Costs & Benefits: Describe any indirect benefits and costs (as defined on page 1)
for local partners that are associated with all significant changes. If there are no indirect
costs or benefits, include a specific statement to that effect.

(4) Information Sources: describe the sources of information used to determine the benefits
and costs, including the source of the Quantitative Factors. If dollar amounts are not
available, indicate why they are not.

(5) Assistance: Identify the amount and source of assistance provided for compliance in both
funding and training or other technical implementation assistance.

(6) Optional: Use this space to add any further information regarding the data provided in
this table, including calculations, qualitative assessments, etc.
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Note: If any of the above information was included in Table 1, use the same information here.

Table 2: Impact on Local Partners

(1) Direct Costs
& Benefits

(2) Quantitative
Factors

Estimated Dollar Amount

Direct Costs

(a)

Direct Benefits

(b)

(3) Indirect
Costs &
Benefits

(4) Information
Sources

(5) Assistance

(6) Optional

Economic Impacts on Families

(1) Describe the direct costs and benefits (as defined on page 1) to a typical family of three
(average family size in Virginia according to the U. S. Census) arising from any proposed
regulatory changes that would affect the costs of food, energy, housing, transportation,
healthcare, and education. If families are not affected, include a specific statement to that

effect and a brief explanation of the rationale.

(2) Quantitative Factors:

(a) Enter estimated dollar value of direct costs.
(b) Enter estimated dollar value of direct benefits.

(3) Indirect Costs & Benefits: Describe any indirect costs and benefits (as defined on page 1)
to a typical family of three that are most likely to result from the proposed changes.

(4) Information Sources: describe the sources of information used to determine the benefits
and costs, including the source of the Quantitative Factors. If dollar amounts are not
available, indicate why not.

(5) Optional: Use this space to add any further information regarding the data provided in

this table, including calculations, qualitative assessments, etc.
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Note: If any of the above information was included in Table 1, use the same information here.

Table 3: Impact on Families

(1) Direct Costs
& Benefits

(2) Quantitative
Factors

Estimated Dollar Amount

Direct Costs

(a)

Direct Benefits

(b)

(3) Indirect
Costs &
Benefits

(4) Information
Sources

(5) Optional

Impacts on Small Businesses

(1) Describe the direct costs and benefits (as defined on page 1) for small businesses. For
purposes of this analysis, “small business” means the same as that term is defined in §
2.2-4007.1. If small businesses are not affected, include a specific statement to that effect

and a brief explanation of the rationale.

(2) Quantitative Factors:
(a) Enter estimated dollar value of direct costs.
(b) Enter estimated dollar value of direct benefits.

(3) Indirect Costs & Benefits: Describe the indirect benefits and costs (as defined on page 1)
for small businesses that are most likely to result from the proposed changes.

(4) Alternatives: Add a qualitative discussion of any equally effective alternatives that would
make the regulatory burden on small business more equitable compared to other affected
business sectors, and how those alternatives were identified.

(5) Information Sources: describe the sources of information used to determine the benefits
and costs, including the source of the Quantitative Factors. If dollar amounts are not
available, indicate why not.

(6) Optional: Use this space to add any further information regarding the data provided in
this table, including calculations, qualitative assessments, etc.

Note: If any of the above information was included in Table 1, use the same information here.

6



Table 4: Impact on Small Businesses
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(1) Direct Costs
& Benefits

(2) Quantitative
Factors

Estimated Dollar Amount

Direct Costs

(a)

Direct Benefits

(b)

(3) Indirect
Costs &
Benefits

(4) Alternatives

(5) Information
Sources

(6) Optional

Changes to Number of Requlatory Requirements

For each individual VAC Chapter amended, repealed, or promulgated by this regulatory action,
list (a) the initial requirement count, (b) the count of requirements that this regulatory package is
adding, (c) the count of requirements that this regulatory package is reducing, (d) the net change
in the number of requirements. This count should be based upon the text as written when this
stage was presented for executive branch review. Five rows have been provided, add or delete

rows as needed.

Table 5: Total Number of Requirements

Number of Requirements

Chapter number Initial Count

Additions Subtractions

Net Change
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Benefit-Cost Ratio = PV of all the Expected Benefits / PV of all the Associated Costs

“Cost-Benefit Analysis” compares the benefits of a regulation with its associated costs. In other
words, all the expected benefits of a regulation are placed on one side and they are compared
against all of the costs that have to be incurred on the other side.

Example: A regulation to require new seat belts for shopping carts is required. The first option,
requiring a plastic bubble is expected to cost grocery stores $25,000,000 over the next ten years
and save toddler hospitalizations $5,000,000 over the next ten years. The second option, a cloth
belt is expected to cost grocery stores $1,000,000 over the next ten years and will save
$2,000,000 in toddler hospitalizations over the next ten years. The appropriate discount rate is
3%.

Option 1:
PV of Benefits = 23=0% = $4,393,054
PV of Costs = Y2 _ 2222990 _ ¢71 965,272

n=0 (14304)n
Benefit/Cost Ratio = $4,393,054/ $21,965,272 = 0.20
Net Benefit = $4,393,054 - $21,965,272 = -17,572,218

Option 2:
PV of Benefits = 57— =05 = $1,757,222
PV of Costs = ¥'2_, ——% _ ¢878,611

n=0(1430,)n
Benefit/Cost Ratio = $1,757,222/ $878,611 =2.0
Net Benefit = $878,611

The goal is for the Benefit/Cost ratio to be greater than 1, and the Net Benefit to be greater than
0, therefore Option 2 would be the preferred option. EO 19 does not require the benefits to
outweigh the costs, but it does require a more complete consideration of quantitative and/or
qualitative factors.
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v. July 28, 2022

COST BENEFIT ANALYSIS WORKSHEET

Discount Rate:

3%

Time horizon:

10 years

Notes:

1. Year O represents the current fiscal year
2. Options 1 & 2 below correspond to the two options in the grocery cart example. Option 3 below provides an
3. Replace the values in the green cells below with the expected costs and benefits for your analysis. Insert zero
4. The sections for options 2 and 3 must be filled out if the agency has any discretion over the proposed regulat:

DO NOT CHANGE THIS NUMBER unless you wish to use a differe

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Year Cost Benefit Cost Benefit Cost Benefit
0 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 100,000 0
1 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 50,000 0
2 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 25,000 0
3 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 0 10,000
4 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 0 25,000
5 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 15,000 45,000
6 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 0 65,000
7 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 0 75,000
8 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 0 75,000
9 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 0 75,000
TOTAL 25,000,000 5,000,000 1,000,000 2,000,000 190,000 370,000
Present Value
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Year Cost Benefit Cost Benefit Cost Benefit
0 2,500,000 500,000 100,000 200,000 100,000 0
1 2,427,184 485,437 97,087 194,175 48,544 0
2 2,356,490 471,298 94,260 188,519 23,565 0
3 2,287,854 457,571 91,514 183,028 0 9,151
4 2,221,218 444,244 88,849 177,697 0 22,212
5 2,156,522 431,304 86,261 172,522 12,939 38,817
6 2,093,711 418,742 83,748 167,497 0 54,436
7 2,032,729 406,546 81,309 162,618 0 60,982
8 1,973,523 394,705 78,941 157,882 0 59,206
9 1,916,042 383,208 76,642 153,283 0 57,481
TOTAL 21,965,272 4,393,054 878,611 1,757,222 185,048 302,286
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Benefit-Cost
Ratio 0.20 2 1.63
Net Benefit -17,572,218 878,611 117,239




'nt discount rate; if so, please make a note of this on the Economic Impact form and provide a rationale

example where costs and benefits vary from year to year.
(0) for years where no costs or benefits are expected.
ory changes. Use "Option 2" for the status quo and "Option 3" for one other alternative.



2022 Wastewater Works Operators

CPE Audit Report

Memo

To: WWWOOSSP Board Members

From: Tanya M. Pettus, Board Administrator

Date: 10/27/2022

Re: 2022 Wastewater Works Operators CPE Audit Report

This memo provides information regarding the 2022 Wastewater Works Operators CPE
Audit Report.

June 1, 2022: The regulant population of wastewater works operators eligible
for audit totaled 1180 in Eagles. As previously directed by the Board, five
percent (5%) of the eligible regulant population was randomly selected,
resulting in 53 regulants selected for audit. Note: Regulants licensed less
than two years were manuallyexcluded.

Initial letter and CPE audit form mailed to regulants selected

for audit.
July 5, 2022: Due date of CPE audit form and required documentation.
July 8, 2022: Final notices sent to unresponsive auditees and auditees whose audits

were pending completion.

July 22, 2022: Deadline for CPE audit form and required documentation.
Update: Responses received as of close of business July 8, 2022:

Total Received 52

Passed 50

Incomplete 0

Pending Review 0

Surrendered 2

No Response 1

Forwarded for Disciplinary Action 1



Client:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:

10/21/2022 at 8:38:35 AM

PFA Summary

For the person or entity to whom originally delivered. May contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Dissemination only as authorized.

PFA Summary

1/1/2017 through 10/21/2022
Delivery Method: ALL

Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 1 Examination - VAWW1

Exam Type:

First Time
Repeater

Total

Exam Type:
First Time

Repeater

Total

Exam Type:
First Time

Repeater

Total

Exam Type:

First Time

Repeater

Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 1 Examination - CLASS1

Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals(ABC-VA)

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
288 45 15.6% 243  84.4% 12 4.0% 300
455 96 21.1% 359 78.9% 17 3.6% 472
743 141 19.0% 602 81.0% 29 3.8% 772
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 2 Examination - VAWW2
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 2 Examination - CLASS2
Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
476 120 25.2% 356 74.8% 10 2.1% 486
586 129 22.0% 457  78.0% 25 4.1% 611
1062 249 23.4% 813 76.6% 35 3.2% 1097
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 3 Examination - VAWW3
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 3 Examination - CLASS3
Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
499 159 31.9% 340 68.1% 14 2.7% 513
546 159 29.1% 387 70.9% 13 2.3% 559
1045 318 30.4% 727  69.6% 27 2.5% 1072
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 4 Examination - VAWW4
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 4 Examination - CLASS4
Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
522 160 30.7% 362 69.3% 17 3.2% 539
666 166 24.9% 500 75.1% 17 2.5% 683
1188 326 27.4% 862 72.6% 34 2.8% 1222

Total

Page 1 of 3

Version 1.1



Client:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:

10/21/2022 at 8:38:35 AM

PFA Summary

For the person or entity to whom originally delivered. May contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Dissemination only as authorized.

PFA Summary

1/1/2017 through 10/21/2022
Delivery Method: ALL

Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 1 Examination - VAWAL1

Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals(ABC-VA)

Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 1 Examination - CLASS1

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 269 63 23.4% 206  76.6% 3 1.1% 272
Repeater 388 92 23.7% 296  76.3% 14 3.5% 402
Total 657 155 23.6% 502  76.4% 17 2.5% 674
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 2 Examination - VAWA2
Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 2 Examination - CLASS2

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 334 168 50.3% 166  49.7% 12 3.5% 346
Repeater 373 96 25.7% 277 74.3% 11 2.9% 384
Total 707 264 37.3% 443 62.7% 23 3.2% 730
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 3 Examination - VAWA3
Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 3 Examination - CLASS3

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 377 203 53.8% 174  46.2% 18 4.6% 395
Recredentialing 4 0 0.0% 4 100.0% 0 0.0% 4
Repeater 283 108 38.2% 175 61.8% 6 2.1% 289
Total 664 311 46.8% 353 53.2% 24 3.5% 688
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 4 Examination - VAWA4
Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 4 Examination - CLASS4

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 315 185 58.7% 130 41.3% 10 3.1% 325
Repeater 174 70 40.2% 104 59.8% 2 1.1% 176
Total 489 255 52.1% 234 47.9% 12 2.4% 501

Page 2 of 3

Version 1.1



PFA Summary

1/1/2017 through 10/21/2022
Delivery Method: ALL

Client:  Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals(ABC-VA)

Test Program:  Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 5 Examination - VAWAS

Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 5 Examination - CLASS5

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 118 100 84.7% 18 15.3% 3 2.5% 121
Repeater 20 9 45.0% 11 55.0% 0 0.0% 20
Total 138 109 79.0% 29  21.0% 3 2.1% 141

Test Program:  Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 6 Examination - VAWAG

Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 6 Examination - CLASS6

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 68 38 55.9% 30 44.1% 1 1.4% 69
Repeater 32 17 53.1% 15 46.9% 2 5.9% 34
Total 100 55 55.0% 45  45.0% 3 2.9% 103

10/21/2022 at 8:38:35 AM
PFA Summary
For the person or entity to whom originally delivered. May contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Dissemination only as authorized. Version 1.1

Page 3 of 3



Client:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:
Test Program:

10/21/2022 at 8:40:57 AM

PFA Summary

For the person or entity to whom originally delivered. May contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Dissemination only as authorized.

PFA Summary

7/14/2022 through 10/21/2022
Delivery Method: ALL

Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 1 Examination - VAWW1

Exam Type:

First Time
Repeater

Total

Exam Type:
First Time

Repeater

Total

Exam Type:
First Time

Repeater

Total

Exam Type:

First Time

Repeater

Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 1 Examination - CLASS1

Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals(ABC-VA)

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
22 1 4.5% 21  95.5% 0 0.0% 22
37 7 18.9% 30 81.1% 4 9.8% 41
59 8 13.6% 51 86.4% 4 6.3% 63
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 2 Examination - VAWW2
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 2 Examination - CLASS2
Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
28 5 17.9% 23 82.1% 0 0.0% 28
50 10 20.0% 40 80.0% 1 2.0% 51
78 15 19.2% 63 80.8% 1 1.3% 79
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 3 Examination - VAWW3
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 3 Examination - CLASS3
Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
27 7 25.9% 20 74.1% 0 0.0% 27
39 13 33.3% 26 66.7% 3 7.1% 42
66 20 30.3% 46  69.7% 3 4.3% 69
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 4 Examination - VAWW4
Virginia Wastewater Works Operator Class 4 Examination - CLASS4
Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
36 6 16.7% 30 83.3% 3 7.7% 39
42 12 28.6% 30 71.4% 2 4.5% 44
78 18 23.1% 60 76.9% 5 6.0% 83

Total

Page 1 of 3

Version 1.1



PFA Summary

7/14/2022 through 10/21/2022
Delivery Method: ALL

Client:  Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals(ABC-VA)

Test Program:

Test Program:

Test Program:

Test Program:

10/21/2022 at 8:40:57 AM
PFA Summary

Exam Type:

Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 1 Examination - VAWAL1

Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 1 Examination - CLASS1

Exam Type:

Exam Type:

Recredentialing

Exam Type:

For the person or entity to whom originally delivered. May contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Dissemination only as authorized.

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
19 4 21.1% 15 78.9% 2 9.5% 21
22 7 31.8% 15 68.2% 2 8.3% 24
41 11 26.8% 30 73.2% 4 8.9% 45
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 2 Examination - VAWA2
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 2 Examination - CLASS2
Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
27 15 55.6% 12 44.4% 2 6.9% 29
18 8 44.4% 10 55.6% 0 0.0% 18
45 23 51.1% 22 48.9% 2 4.3% 47
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 3 Examination - VAWA3
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 3 Examination - CLASS3
Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
34 18 52.9% 16 47.1% 3 8.1% 37
1 0 0.0% 1 100.0% 0 0.0% 1
11 8 72.7% 3 27.3% 0 0.0% 11
46 26 56.5% 20 43.5% 3 6.1% 49
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 4 Examination - VAWA4
Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 4 Examination - CLASS4
Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
20 8 40.0% 12 60.0% 1 4.8% 21
11 5 45.5% 6 54.5% 0 0.0% 11
31 13 41.9% 18 58.1% 1 3.1% 32

Page 2 of 3

Version 1.1



PFA Summary

7/14/2022 through 10/21/2022
Delivery Method: ALL

Client:  Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals(ABC-VA)

Test Program:  Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 5 Examination - VAWAS

Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 5 Examination - CLASS5

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 8 6 75.0% 2  25.0% 0 0.0% 8
Repeater 1 1 100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1
Total 9 7 77.8% 2 222% 0 0.0% 9

Test Program:  Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 6 Examination - VAWAG

Exam Type: Virginia Waterworks Operator Class 6 Examination - CLASS6

Total Tested Pass % Fail % Absent % Total
First Time 3 1 33.3% 2 66.7% 0 0.0% 3
Total 3 1 33.3% 2 66.7% 0 0.0% 3

10/21/2022 at 8:40:57 AM
PFA Summary
For the person or entity to whom originally delivered. May contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Dissemination only as authorized. Version 1.1

Page 3 of 3



VIRGINIA MUNICIPAL DRINKING WATER ASSOCIATION

October 21, 2022

Trisha L. Lindsey

Executive Director, Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works
Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals

Virginia Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation
9960 Maryland Drive, Suite 400

Richmond, VA 23233

Re:  Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operator Licensing
Dear Ms. Lindsey:

On behalf of the Virginia Municipal Drinking Water Association (VMDWA) and Virginia
Association of Municipal Wastewater Agencies (VAMWA), we are writing to share significant
operator staffing challenges that our member agencies are encountering across the Commonwealth
and to seek collaboration with the Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and
Onsite Sewage System Professionals (Board) and DPOR to help overcome these challenges.

As you may know, for more than three decades VAMWA has represented the policy interests of
Virginia’s public clean water agencies. VAMWA'’s agency membership represents over 95 percent
of Virginia’s population served by centralized wastewater treatment. You may be less familiar
with VAMWA'’s newer sister organization, VMDWA, which was organized in 2021 and already
consists of 39 major public drinking water agencies. Both organizations are led by boards
comprised of utility directors and general managers from across Virginia.

Obviously, VAMWA, VMDWA, the Board, and DPOR have a strong common interest in the
training, recruitment, and retention of competent persons to operate Virginia’s publicly-owned
waterworks and wastewater works, while protecting the public health, welfare, property, and water
resources in Virginia.

We are reaching out to share with you that utility executives from VAMWA and VMDWA
member agencies have been reporting, with a growing level of concern, their persistent and
increasing difficulties in hiring and retaining licensed operators to staff their facilities.

One key aspect of the problem is the low pass rate under the national ABC licensing exam that
Virginia currently uses. While this is surely a complex issue with multiple causes, our members
have reported that certain unnecessary exam features contribute to high failure rates, such as the
shift to a closed book exam process and inclusion of exam questions that are irrelevant to many
facilities in Virginia. VAMWA and VMDWA would like to explore targeted changes to the



Trisha L. Lindsey
October 21, 2022
Page 2

examination process to improve pass rates without weakening necessary standards. We support
attention to these issues and evaluation of other aspects of the examination process to increase the
pass rate in appropriate ways. We would like to partner with the Board and DPOR in this regard.

We are also concerned that Virginia finds itself with a competitive disadvantage to our neighboring
states such as North Carolina, South Carolina, and Maryland. Other states have streamlined
regulatory approaches to granting license reciprocity to sought-after talent. In contrast, recruiting
to attract out-of-state operators to meet Virginia staffing shortages is complicated by an extended
licensing process with an uncertain outcome for the job applicant, and we lose recruits because of
this. VAMWA and VMDWA believe that Virginia has an opportunity to significantly streamline
the administrative process for granting licenses without examination. We recommend more
generously and more quickly granting reciprocity through staff-level approvals to applicants based
on generally comparable out-of-state licenses, which could be determined and published in
advance to aid recruitment. We suggest the process specifically include rapid approvals for job
applicants, so that employers and employees can make employment decisions with more certainty
about schedules and reciprocity outcomes.

Thank you for the opportunity to share these concerns and recommendations. Consistent with the
Governor’s Executive Order 19, we would greatly appreciate the Board’s and DPOR’s support for
improvements to help quickly address the severe staffing challenges in the public water and
wastewater sectors. We will follow up with you to seek a time to discuss opportunities, and in the
meantime you can reach us through Chris Pomeroy at (804) 874-1028 (c) or chris@AquaLaw.com,
or directly as shown below.

Thank you for your consideration and your service to public water utilities.

Sincerely,
George B. Hayes, P.E. Timothy A. Mi.tchell, P.E.
VAMWA President VMDWA President
hayesg@chesterfield.gov timothy.mitchell@lynchburgva.gov
(804) 318-8372 (434)455-4252
Copy by email to:

Ms. Erica Duncan — Wastewater Operator

Mr. Thomas Wayne Fore — Waterworks Operator
Mr. Don Riggleman — Wastewater Works Owner
Mr. Caleb Taylor — Waterworks Owner
VAMWA Board of Directors

VMDWA Board of Directors

Christopher D. Pomeroy, Esq.



WWWOOSSP Board Training & Education Committee
Application Review Summary

PROVIDER NAME:

UF TREEO Center

University of FL Training, Research and
Education for Environmental Occupations

TYPE OF COURSE:

Wastewater Works Operator—Pre-license

SUBJECT/COURSE TITLE:

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations
C&B Training Course

DELIVERY METHOD OF INSTRUCTION: Online
PREVIOUS BOARD APPROVALS: N/A
Approval

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Training credits to be determined by
Committee
(149.8 contact hours)




Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation

Statement of Financial Activity

Board for WWWOOSSP
954530

2022-2024 Biennium

September 2022

Biennium-to-Date Comparison
September 2022 July 2020 - July 2022 -
Activity September 2020 September 2022
Cash/Revenue Balance Brought Forward 126,089
Revenues 14,225 33,052 44,482
Cumulative Revenues 170,571
Cost Categories:
Board Expenditures 432 2,557 3,480
Board Administration 7,415 23,955 26,073
Administration of Exams 847 4,194 2,824
Enforcement 503 1,500 1,722
Legal Services 0 223 0
Information Systems 3,727 15,571 11,551
Facilities and Support Services 3,058 11,311 8,815
Agency Administration 7,853 10,354 17,275
Other / Transfers 0 0 0
Total Expenses 23,835 69,665 71,741
Transfer To/(From) Cash Reserves 0 0 (12,349)
Ending Cash/Revenue Balance 111,179
Cash Reserve Beginning Balance 86,854 99,203
Change in Cash Reserve 0 (12,349)
Cash Reserve Ending Balance 86,854 86,854

Number of Regulants
Current Month 5,927
Previous Biennium-to-Date 5,809




UPDATE ON OUTREACH OPPORTUNITIES




ELECTION OF OFFICERS




REPORT FROM THE 2022 BOARD
MEMBER TRAINING CONFERENCE




OTHER BUSINESS




FUTURE MEETING DATES
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 01                           NOTE:  The telephonic hearing

 02  commences at 1:01 p.m., as follows:

 03                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Good afternoon.

 04  My name is Julie Jackson-Bailey and I'm a designee of the

 05  board.  This is an informal fact-finding conference to hear

 06  additional information regarding the regulatory issues involved

 07  with your application for licensure.

 08                           Assisting with the IFF conference

 09  today is Danielle Jones.  In addition, we have a court

 10  reporter on the line.  The court will make a transcript of

 11  everything that is said and that transcript will become an

 12  official part of your file.

 13                           I now convene the conference to accept

 14  presentation from those individuals who are present.

 15                           Just a couple of housekeeping rules

 16  before we start.  Since we are doing this over the telephone,

 17  please speak slowly and clearly so that the court reporter

 18  can make an accurate transcript.

 19                           Also, I would ask that if I or

 20  Ms. Jones are attempting to ask you a question that you will

 21  please let us ask the entire question before you begin

 22  responding and please wait until we have finished speaking

 23  before you answer.  If we speak over each other, the line can

 24  sometimes cut out.

 25                           And, Mr. Sanders, are you planning
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 01  to speak on Mr. Mohamed's behalf today or are you just

 02  coordinating the call?

 03                           MR. SANDERS:  Both.  I will be

 04  speaking on his behalf and coordinating.  So both, both

 05  capacities.

 06                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.

 07                           All right.  Mr. Mohamed, if you will

 08  state your full name and mailing address for the record.

 09                           MR. MOHAMED:  Ramze Yaxyah Mohamed.

 10  43393 Riverpoint Drive, Leesburg 20175.

 11                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And is that the

 12  address where you currently are at the prison?

 13                           MR. MOHAMED:  No.  That's my mailing

 14  address at home.  The prison address I don't have on hand.

 15                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And that would

 16  just be the address we currently have for you.

 17                           Mr. Sanders, do you happen to have that?

 18                           MR. SANDERS:  Yes, I do.  It is the

 19  Deerfield Correctional Center, 21360 Deerfield Road, Capron,

 20  Virginia 23829.  This would be care of Keith Sanders and

 21  Ramze Yaxyah Mohamed.

 22                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And,

 23  Mr. Sanders, if you're participating today, you will receive

 24  a copy as well as Mr. Mohamed.  So we should use the same

 25  address for you as well, correct?
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 01                           MR. SANDERS:  Yes.

 02                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.

 03                           All right.  Mr. Mohamed, the reason

 04  you are appearing today for an informal fact-finding conference

 05  is that you disclosed prior criminal convictions on your

 06  application for licensure.

 07                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, ma'am.

 08                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  The first

 09  charge we need to speak about today is concerning an incident

 10  that occurred on or about December 27th -- oh, I'm sorry.

 11                           First, Ms. Jones, will you please

 12  read the exhibits into the record, please?

 13                           MS. JONES:  At this time I'm going

 14  to read the exhibits into the record.

 15                           Board Exhibit 1 is the applicant's

 16  application and other documents.  Board Exhibit 2 is the

 17  informal fact-finding conference by telephone dated August

 18  8, 2022.  This was delivered by UPS on August 9, 2022 to

 19  the address of record and the delivery consisted of Board

 20  Exhibit 1 and Board Exhibit 2.

 21                           Board Exhibit 3 is the notice of

 22  additional documents dated August 16, 2022.  It contains

 23  conviction information from the Virginia courts website and

 24  it is -- which is Board Exhibit Number 4.  Both of these

 25  exhibits were delivered on August 17, 2022 to the address
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 01  of record by way of UPS, United Parcel Service.

 02                           Mr. Mohamed, can you confirm receipt

 03  of receiving these documents prior to today's IFF?

 04                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, ma'am, I have

 05  received them.

 06                           MS. JONES:  Thank you.  Those are

 07  all the exhibits that I have.

 08                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And I apologize.

 09  Let me start again.

 10                           So the reason you are appearing for

 11  an informal fact-finding conference today is that you disclosed

 12  prior criminal convictions on your application.

 13                           The first charge we need to speak

 14  about is concerning an incident that occurred on or about

 15  December 27, 2014, possession of Schedule I or II drug, a

 16  felony.  And it appears from the records that we received

 17  that you had a deferred disposition.  However, that was

 18  terminated and then on November 20, 2017 the Circuit Court

 19  for Loudoun County, Virginia convicted you of possession

 20  of Schedule I or II drugs and sentenced you to 12 months of

 21  incarceration with six months suspended followed by 15 years

 22  of supervised probation.

 23                           Can you tell me what specifically

 24  led to that conviction?

 25                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah.  So on the night

�0008

 01  I got the charge I was lucky enough to get a deferred finding

 02  because it was my first criminal charge.  So I got the deferred

 03  finding, but shortly after that, about six months later, I

 04  caught a DUI, driving under the influence.  So they happened

 05  to extend my deferred finding for two years, and during those

 06  two years I caught these new charges that sentenced me to this

 07  prison sentence I'm at now.

 08                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And how did you --

 09  what happened that -- how were you charged?  Did the police

 10  catch you selling or did they pull you over?  How did they --

 11                           MR. MOHAMED:  What happened was this

 12  is before I realized I had a drug problem and it got brought

 13  to light during this time of my life.  I got pulled over

 14  and I was in the car with a friend of mine and he had

 15  prescription drugs on him.  Since I was the driver, I was

 16  the one who took responsibility for everything in the car.

 17                           And, yeah, I got arrested and I

 18  got put out on bond.  So, yeah, we got pulled over and I had

 19  narcotics in the vehicle.

 20                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And you said

 21  it was prescription drugs?

 22                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, ma'am.  They

 23  weren't prescribed but they were prescription drugs.  I

 24  believe they were Oxycodone I believe.  It's been a little

 25  while now.
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 01                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And then you

 02  said that you had a deferred disposition and then you were

 03  pulled over for a DUI.  When was that approximately?

 04                           MR. MOHAMED:  It couldn't have been

 05  much longer than six months after the fact, and that was what

 06  led me to realizing in speaking to my family about I think

 07  I have a drug problem.

 08                           So that happened about six months

 09  after this.  I'm not sure if you guys have that on record.

 10  That's from the Fairfax County jurisdiction.

 11                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.

 12                           MR. MOHAMED:  But what ended up

 13  happening is I ended up serving 21 days in the Fairfax County

 14  adult Detention Center and I had the DUI nol-prossed.  So

 15  when I went back in front of the Loudoun County Circuit Court,

 16  they actually gave me a blessing and an opportunity, which I

 17  squandered, which was they extended my deferred finding out

 18  for another two years.

 19                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  You said two

 20  years?  Because I think earlier you had said three.

 21                           MR. MOHAMED:  No, ma'am.

 22                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  So two?

 23                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes.

 24                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And with that

 25  situation, with the DUI, were you swerving, speeding?  How
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 01  were you pulled over?  Do you recall?

 02                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, I believe I was

 03  swerving in and out of the lane.

 04                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Then

 05  the next incident we need to talk about is an incident that

 06  occurred on or about December 31, 2016.  For that charge,

 07  you were charged with distribution of a Schedule I or II for

 08  profit, a felony, and then convicted on the same date,

 09  November 20, 2017 and the court sentenced you to 15 years of

 10  incarceration with seven years suspended followed by 15 years

 11  of supervised probation.

 12                           Can you tell me what exactly occurred

 13  that led to that conviction?

 14                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah.  What happened

 15  was, was in the December date -- I believe it was the 31st --

 16  I, I sold some narcotics to a friend of mine and he actually

 17  ended up passing away.  And so later on in the next month,

 18  in January, I got a controlled buy on me to another friend

 19  of mine.

 20                           But neither -- on that case in

 21  January it actually was still considered selling or giving

 22  but I didn't actually take any money.  I just gave it to him.

 23  And then I got arrested I believe on the 20th for an obstruction

 24  of justice charge.  I believe the charge was given to me

 25  because they had the controlled buys on me.  And I got taken
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 01  into Loudoun County court and they served me on the distribution

 02  of the Schedule I or II from the January date.  Then in May

 03  I got indicted for the charge in December.

 04                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And so

 05  they just pulled all those together and held everything on

 06  the 20th of November?

 07                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, ma'am.

 08                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  We had down

 09  from the records that you were convicted in January for events

 10  that occurred on or about January 15, 2017, that you were

 11  convicted for manufacturing of a controlled substance.

 12                           Is that the same incident that you

 13  were discussing as far as the controlled buys?

 14                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes.  Yes, ma'am.

 15  Yeah, that was the January 15th date 2017.  Yeah, that was a

 16  controlled buy, yes, ma'am.

 17                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  How did that

 18  happen?

 19                           MR. MOHAMED:  So what happened was

 20  the person I was actually who, who I ended up giving the

 21  narcotics to, he was, he was a friend of a friend.  This

 22  was actually a really dark time in our lives.  Another friend

 23  of ours recently passed away and I wasn't really in touch

 24  with the gentleman I gave the controlled buy to.  I'd only

 25  met him in passing and kind of group settings, and he ended
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 01  up giving me a call.  He was talking to me about a friend

 02  of ours named Ralph who recently passed away driving his

 03  vehicle, and, you know, he wanted to kind of hang out and

 04  console and kind of grieve together.  So I decided to do

 05  so and I met up with him.

 06                           He was talking about how -- you

 07  know, he was using, you know, narcotics and so was I at the

 08  time and he was talking about how he wasn't feeling too good

 09  because he hadn't had anything in a little while.  So I had

 10  some stuff on me so I gave it to him.  He tried to offer

 11  me money.  Granted, I didn't know at this time it was a

 12  controlled buy and I was just like, man, it's all right,

 13  here you go.  Man, I don't really need anything from you.

 14  Just get yourself together.  And, you know, we hung out

 15  for a little while.  Then we parted ways.

 16                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  What type of

 17  drug did you give him?

 18                           MR. MOHAMED:  This was heroin.  I

 19  believe after the lab result came back it was heroin mixed

 20  with some sort of fentanyl.

 21                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  If we can just

 22  circle back real quick to the prior charge, you said you

 23  had stolen narcotics from a friend; is that right?  Or you

 24  had sold?  Sold or stolen?

 25                           MR. MOHAMED:  Sold.  Not stolen, sold.
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 01                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Sorry.

 02  It's the speaker is a little fuzzy here, so I apologize.

 03                           And what type of narcotics did you

 04  sell your friend at that time?

 05                           MR. MOHAMED:  That was also the same,

 06  heroin.  And I believe -- I didn't know at the time, but it

 07  had fentanyl in it as well.  The same narcotics, yes, ma'am.

 08                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And your friend

 09  passed away from use of those drugs?

 10                           MR. MOHAMED:  Well, granted, I'm

 11  not sure what caused his death, but I took responsibility

 12  because I did give him something that night.  I believe,

 13  you know, I was, I was with him earlier in the evening.  He

 14  was a little bit, you know, already under some sort of

 15  influence.  I'm not entirely sure what he took, but, you

 16  know, at the end of the night, you know, I gave him some

 17  stuff and then the next morning, you know, he was in the

 18  hospital.

 19                           So I took full responsibility and

 20  I still do and it's something that still hurts me every day.

 21                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Have you ever

 22  manufactured any substances?

 23                           MR. MOHAMED:  No, ma'am.

 24                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  All right.

 25  And at the time of all these incidents, you said that you
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 01  were using drugs, correct?

 02                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, I was.  So

 03  prior to the first felony conviction of the possession of the

 04  Schedule I, about a year before that I ended up shattering

 05  my clavicle and it was kind of the beginning of the end as

 06  you can say.

 07                           I got prescribed narcotics and, you

 08  know, I didn't have health insurance.  I was contracting

 09  at the time for Amazon Web Services and, you know, I got

 10  put on these drugs and I was using them, you know, often.

 11  Maybe a little more than I was supposed to for the pain.

 12  I was prescribed them for about five, six months.

 13                           Granted, I wasn't aware of -- and

 14  I wish I had a little bit more knowledge of what these

 15  prescriptions painkillers did to the person.  And, you

 16  know, after those six months I was physically addicted.  I

 17  was going through withdrawals and things of that nature and

 18  instead of going back to the doctor -- the doctor actually

 19  stopped prescribing me the medicine because, you know, he was

 20  recommending me to get surgery but I really couldn't afford

 21  it at the time.  And I went to the street.  I went to friends

 22  of mine who had prescription drugs and I started buying them

 23  off of them just to ease the pain, and a year later I'm still

 24  using these drugs.  And at this point I don't know if I'm

 25  using it for pain or if I'm full blown addiction.
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 01                           So after I got arrested and, you

 02  know, I spoke to my family about what was going on, you know,

 03  I tried to get clean but by then, you know, I was already full

 04  fledged addiction.  That's when I started drinking alcohol,

 05  but prior to that I wasn't really drinking much alcohol.

 06  And it led to everything that happened up to this date.

 07                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  So you started

 08  using in approximately around 2014?

 09                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, approximately

 10  about 2015, 2016, around that time.

 11                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  But in

 12  the December 2014 when you were in possession --

 13                           MR. MOHAMED:  I'm sorry.  I'm sorry.

 14  Yes.  Yeah -- no, prior to 2014.  Probably 2013, 2012, around

 15  that time.  I'm sorry.  I mixed up the dates.

 16                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  So you were

 17  using up until you were incarcerated; is that correct?

 18                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, ma'am.

 19                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And besides

 20  prescription drugs, were you using anything else?

 21                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, alcohol, marijuana.

 22  That's about it.

 23                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Did you ever use

 24  heroin?

 25                           MR. MOHAMED:  No.

�0016

 01                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  While you've

 02  been incarcerated, have you been required to complete any

 03  rehabilitative programs?

 04                           MR. MOHAMED:  No, I wasn't required,

 05  but I took it upon myself to do so.  For my sentencing, I was

 06  sentenced to straight time in the penitentiary.  So, you

 07  know, I worked on myself then.

 08                           During this time of incarceration,

 09  I've done a lot of reflecting.  You know, I've been through,

 10  you know, different types of rehabilitation programs such

 11  as the NA and I think there was one called Lark.  And, you

 12  know, I just went through it by myself.

 13                           I had a lot of conversations with

 14  other gentlemen during my incarceration who were going through

 15  the same sort of ordeal and, you know, we've expressed to each

 16  other, got things off our chests, just trying to use this

 17  opportunity to be the best version of me.

 18                           So I've worked on myself.  I haven't

 19  had any real sort of treatment.  I've been to NA meetings,

 20  you know, in the jail.  In prison they didn't offer too many,

 21  but I have used those tools that I've learned during NA and

 22  just really started reevaluating myself.  I turned to my

 23  higher power.  I got close with my religion.

 24                           I started to focus on things with my

 25  weight during my time of incarceration.  I weighed about 300
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 01  pounds.  I lost about a hundred and 15 pounds.

 02                           I just tried to change every aspect

 03  of my life.  I wanted to be the best version of me not only

 04  for me, for my family.  So I've worked on my addiction maybe

 05  not the most regular way through meetings and things like

 06  that, but I've worked on it with ways of self-reflection,

 07  reading self-help books just trying to be -- just trying to

 08  make it.  Trying to be the best version of me.

 09                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Besides programs

 10  that are geared towards addiction, have you done any other

 11  rehabilitative type of programs while incarcerated?

 12                           MR. MOHAMED:  Absolutely.  Anything

 13  I was ever offered in the prison system that I have been

 14  around I have completed.  Things like anger management,

 15  things like reentry program, how to work, money management.

 16  I even got a fire extinguisher trade class on, you know,

 17  how to put out fires in the woods.  Just anything just to

 18  rehabilitate just to learn.

 19                           I ended up becoming a GED tutor

 20  just so I can stay closer to the books.  I've helped a few

 21  gentlemen get their GED.  So, yeah, anything I was offered

 22  that I was able to do I have participated in.  ServSafe is

 23  another one.

 24                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Just to clarify,

 25  you said GED tutor; is that correct?

�0018

 01                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, that was one

 02  of the opportunities I had when I was in the penitentiary,

 03  to be a GED tutor.  So I did that for about a year and a half.

 04                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  While you've

 05  been incarcerated, have you had any institutional infractions?

 06                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, I got a charge.

 07  As soon as I got into the system I got a tobacco charge, a

 08  contraband charge.  This was, I believe, in 2018 right when

 09  I got to the penitentiary, but ever since then I've kind of

 10  kept my nose clean and just tried to do the right thing.

 11                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Can you walk me

 12  through what jobs you've held while you've been incarcerated?

 13                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah.  The first job

 14  I had I was working at Red Onion state prison from Camp 18.

 15  I was working in the laundry doing laundry for the inmates.

 16  After that there was an opportunity for me to be a GED

 17  teacher, so -- or a GED assistant, so I went in and met with

 18  the teacher.  I spoke with them.  I told them the things

 19  I was trying to do and that, you know, I went to college

 20  and almost finished my associate's degree.  I had an

 21  opportunity to get a full-time job so I ended up putting

 22  my degree on the back burner.

 23                           So I just told them, you know, I'd

 24  love to help out.  I love learning and I think I'd be good

 25  for this.  So I did that for a while.  I was a GED tutor
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 01  for about year and a half and then I got transferred to

 02  the facility I'm at now and I went and worked for -- they

 03  have a flash freeze plant.  I went and worked there for

 04  about six months.  And then I became the house man, just

 05  maintenance of the living area, cleaning, taking care of

 06  the showers and things of that nature.

 07                           Then I worked at the culinary arts.

 08  I originally actually went there because I was trying to get my

 09  certificate.  They had a culinary arts program and I really --

 10  you know, my whole goal while being incarcerated was trying

 11  to take advantage of every opportunity I had.

 12                           So I think that was an opportunity.

 13  I went over there.  Granted, this was during the time of the

 14  pandemic, the height of the pandemic, so the program kind

 15  of went on a standstill.  They weren't doing too many things

 16  towards the class and I found out about an opportunity at

 17  Wastewater and with the same mind-set of trying to take

 18  advantage of what I have in front of me, I applied for

 19  the wastewater apprenticeship and I met here Mr. Keith

 20  Sanders and it's been about a year now and I've been in

 21  the program just trying to get here, trying to be able

 22  to get to a place where I can take a test, go home with

 23  some sort of certificate and put myself in a position of

 24  winning.

 25                           My whole mind-set of just being
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 01  incarcerated and even all my jobs is looking for an opportunity

 02  to learn something that I can use when I go home.  So that

 03  was my career path in the penitentiary.

 04                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And just because

 05  it was a little hard to hear you over the speaker here, when

 06  you were transferred to the facility that you're currently

 07  at, you said for about six months you did something and

 08  I wasn't able to catch that.

 09                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, I was working

 10  at a flash freeze plant.  It's where they process produce.

 11  I was working there for about six months.

 12                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Flash freeze.

 13                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, ma'am.

 14                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And what's the

 15  name of the plant?

 16                           MR. MOHAMED:  That is the name, Flash

 17  Freeze.

 18                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Oh, it is the

 19  name.  I'm sorry.

 20                           All right.  You said that you

 21  attended college?

 22                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, ma'am.  I went

 23  to Northern Virginia Community College as soon as I graduated

 24  high school.  I went there for about two years.  I was working

 25  toward my information technology degree and at the time
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 01  I was working at -- I don't know if you're familiar with

 02  Geek Squad.  They're a repair tech company that works inside

 03  of Best Buy.  Working on my craft.  You know, I really wanted

 04  to become an engineer.  I fell in love with computers at

 05  a young age, building them, things like that.

 06                           So I got an opportunity to work at

 07  Geek Squad working on everyday laptops, desktops, you know,

 08  and with that I had an opportunity to apply for Amazon on

 09  their corporate side and while I was going to school I applied

 10  for Amazon and I got hired on as a Linux engineer.

 11                           So I was working for them for

 12  about a year and a half while I was attending school but

 13  this ended up being a full-time job.  So I kind of -- I

 14  had two classes left, which now I look back and I really

 15  wish I'd finished, but I ended up not finishing my degree

 16  and pursuing my career as a Linux engineer and -- yes.

 17                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Can you tell

 18  me which years you were in college, what years those were?

 19                           MR. MOHAMED:  Two thousand nine up

 20  to maybe 2013.

 21                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  You said you

 22  attended for about two years.  Is that like --

 23                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah.  Well, I attended

 24  full time for about 18 months and then I took one class.

 25  I had to take calculus.  So I took calculus in the next
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 01  semester which made it two years, and then I had the two

 02  classes left, which I was still enrolled and I signed up

 03  for the classes.  I just never ended up really showing up

 04  because I was at work.  So a little longer than two years

 05  but full time for about two years.

 06                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  What years were

 07  you employed with Geek Squad?

 08                           MR. MOHAMED:  Ooh.  I want to say

 09  from two thousand and -- I believe the summer of my first

 10  year of college.  So 2009 until '12.  Around 2012 before

 11  I had the opportunity with Amazon.  About three years.

 12                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And then so

 13  in 2012 you were hired on at Amazon and you worked there

 14  until your incarceration?

 15                           MR. MOHAMED:  No, ma'am.  I worked

 16  there for a year.

 17                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.

 18                           MR. MOHAMED:  I worked there for

 19  a year.  I was a contractor.  I wasn't -- I didn't have a

 20  full-time position with Amazon.  And, you know, after a

 21  year they were talking about hiring people on full-time

 22  positions and it was kind of a little bit -- it was kind

 23  of lingering.  You know, I was waiting for the opportunity

 24  to get hired on full time and they kind of kept delaying

 25  the process.  So I ended up applying for a company as a
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 01  lead Linux engineer.  I worked there I believe about a year.

 02                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  So that would

 03  be in 2013?

 04                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, about 2013.

 05  And then in 2014 before I -- in that December I was working

 06  as a lead data tech engineer for a company called Tata

 07  Consulting Services.  T-A-T-A.

 08                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  So you

 09  were working there as a lead engineer in 2014?

 10                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah.  And during that

 11  time working there that's when I got arrested for the first

 12  possession charge.

 13                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And after you

 14  were arrested that time, did you continue to work there?

 15                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, I did.  I worked

 16  there until I believe September of 2015.

 17                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And then did

 18  you go somewhere else after that?

 19                           MR. MOHAMED:  I did.  I was kind of

 20  jumping around.  And this is also something that had to do

 21  with my addiction, jumping around.  Because what happened

 22  is, you know, I'm working at these jobs.  I'm working --

 23  well, especially when I started working for Tata.  This

 24  is when I'm full fledged -- I'm understanding that I had

 25  an addiction problem.  I got arrested, you know, and I
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 01  couldn't stop using.

 02                           You know, I'm working at this

 03  job for about six months or longer and as soon as I feel

 04  like I felt like they were starting to maybe notice or

 05  friends or coworkers are starting to ask me questions, I

 06  would try to get a new job.  You know, I was trying to

 07  kind of run from my peers, run from people who cared

 08  about me that tried to help me.

 09                           So I ended up getting a job for

 10  Apple, Apple Corporate.  I worked as a cloud computing

 11  engineer over their iTunes and I worked there after that

 12  fact.

 13                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Do you have a

 14  time frame on that?

 15                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah.  I believe it was

 16  September of '15.

 17                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And do you know

 18  how long?  Until when?

 19                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, I worked there

 20  until probably the summer of '16 and then during the summer

 21  of '16 I ended up becoming an independent contractor for a

 22  company called S-A-T and I worked there until I got incarcerated.

 23                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  You've

 24  applied now for your wastewater works operator license.  What

 25  are your plans moving forward if you're granted licensure?
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 01                           MR. MOHAMED:  My plans moving

 02  forward is to take a dive into this career path.  Hopefully

 03  get licensed.  I'm from the Northern Virginia area.  I was

 04  going to try and maybe get a job with my license.  Apply

 05  for an opportunity with a municipality up in that area.

 06                           I'm not sure now, you know, being a

 07  convicted felon how easy the road is going to be, but I'm

 08  willing to endure whatever it takes for me to maybe jump

 09  into this field and jump into a career path that, you know,

 10  I can see myself doing.

 11                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  When do you

 12  anticipate being released from incarceration?

 13                           MR. MOHAMED:  February 13, 2023.

 14                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And how long

 15  are you going to be on probation, or do you know, following your

 16  release?

 17                           MR. MOHAMED:  Granted, I was

 18  sentenced to 15 years.  I believe there was a change in the

 19  law when Governor Northam was in office that they capped

 20  out probation to five years.  So I'm under the impression

 21  it's five years, but I'm not entirely sure, ma'am.  I'm not

 22  entirely sure.

 23                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  What do you

 24  like about working in wastewater?

 25                           MR. MOHAMED:  Well, it's something
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 01  that's new.  I've never done anything like this, so I like

 02  that.  I like -- you know, I like the science behind it all.

 03  You know, I never -- don't mean to get graphic, but I never

 04  thought about what happens after you flush the toilet and

 05  now I learned.

 06                           You know, I learned this is a

 07  natural process.  I learned there's a lot of science and

 08  things that -- you know, I believe in a higher power,

 09  but it's like a miracle, you know, watching how, you know,

 10  the process moves along.  So I like that.

 11                           I like the part working with my hands.

 12  You know, I've been building computers and working on things

 13  with my hands as long as I can remember and I like being

 14  able -- getting down and dirty, using tools and things

 15  of that nature.

 16                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And Mr. Sanders

 17  is your supervisor?

 18                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, ma'am.

 19                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And, Mr. Sanders,

 20  do you have anything you would like to add or say on Mr. Mohamed's

 21  behalf?

 22                           MR. SANDERS:  Absolutely.  He's

 23  cringing right now, but, you know, I've sat and I listened

 24  to Mr. Mohamed recount his life and I think about everything

 25  that you see on the paper in front of you and I saw all
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 01  this also but I have a unique opportunity that you haven't

 02  had.  I've had the opportunity to watch him develop, his

 03  personality develop, his interests, to actually genuinely

 04  observe him, his work ethics, his ethics in general, and

 05  it's amazing what you can see when someone sees something

 06  that they want and you watch them move toward it and you

 07  watch it affect every part of their life.

 08                           In this program we have zero

 09  tolerance for any kind of charges, any kind of misbehavior.

 10  Even the allegation of inappropriate behavior terminates

 11  you from this program.

 12                           I listened to -- you asked him a

 13  question about his sobriety and his treatment and unfortunately

 14  the Department of Corrections, when you have a short sentence,

 15  it's not unfortunate your sentence is short but what normally

 16  happens is you end up being passed out to work camps where

 17  there is not a lot of formal programming available.

 18                           So to hear someone actually say

 19  they took it upon themselves to seek what training and

 20  treatment they could is very admirable and it's often the

 21  only avenue that these gentlemen have.

 22                           When I listened to him, the one

 23  thing that I'm struck by is the fact that you see what's

 24  on paper but I've had the opportunity to watch him grow.

 25  He is a skilled operator.  He's meticulous.  He's definitely --
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 01  the one thing we've pushed above all else is reliability,

 02  consistency and definitely moral accountability.  I've had the

 03  opportunity to sit down and explain to him that you are,

 04  right now you're a steward of the environment.  You may

 05  have and probably will have not only the lives of your

 06  coworkers in your hands but you're going to be the health

 07  and welfare of society in general and it is a tremendous

 08  responsibility, and I think he's responded to that.

 09                           He's the first one here.  When

 10  we go pick him up, he's the first one at the gate and he's

 11  often a little disappointed when we're late.  He comes in,

 12  he does that -- and what I like about him is that you don't

 13  have to ask him.  He comes in and he goes right to work

 14  and he's asking me is there anything for me that I need,

 15  and it's really refreshing.

 16                           Wastewater has the capacity to

 17  change lives.  I've seen it happen over and over again.

 18  It is my intent to aid him in his job search not only as

 19  far as logistics of it but also in fine-tuning his interview

 20  skills for the time that he has left with us.

 21                           I know wastewater can change lives.

 22  It wasn't so often -- matter fact, it was 2014 I sat in front

 23  of this board over the telephone when I was incarcerated,

 24  so I know it can change lives.  I look at my life from there

 25  to this point and the felony conviction only holds you back
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 01  as much as you let it.

 02                           I believe that he's going to make an

 03  excellent operator.  More importantly, I think he's going

 04  to make an excellent citizen.  I am actually very, very

 05  proud of him and I can't wait to see him prosper in the

 06  future, and if he lived in this area, believe me, and he

 07  obtained his license -- which he will.  He'll pass the

 08  test.  He's very intelligent.  If he lived in this area,

 09  I would be first one at the door to offer him a job.

 10                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Very good.

 11  Thank you.

 12                           Is there anything, Mr. Mohamed,

 13  that you would like to add that I haven't asked about today?

 14                           MR. MOHAMED:  No.  I would just

 15  like to thank you guys for this opportunity.  I know it's

 16  one thing that I've made a mantra in my life as of late

 17  is to take advantage of every opportunity that you have,

 18  and I wanted to thank you guys for giving me this opportunity

 19  just to even sit and interview for this chance to make a

 20  difference in my life and maybe make a difference, you

 21  know, in my environment like Mr. Sanders said of how

 22  important of a job this is for your community and on a

 23  global perspective.

 24                           So I just wanted to thank you and

 25  there's nothing else I would like to add.
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 01                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  One other

 02  thing I did want to ask is once you're released do you have

 03  a strong support system or do you have any thoughts as to

 04  how you will maintain your sobriety?

 05                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, I have a huge

 06  support system which makes it difficult being incarcerated

 07  for what I'm incarcerated for and I think about it all

 08  the time how much I've disappointed my loved ones.

 09                           I come from a big family.  I have

 10  seven siblings and all of them, you know, through the grace

 11  of God have, in my opinion, you know, have done something

 12  with their lives and, you know, I was the youngest so, you

 13  know, I've had the most potential and I wasted a lot of time.

 14                           So I do have a great support system.

 15  Fortunately, none of my family members have ever been

 16  incarcerated or, you know, have been in the situation I am

 17  about using drugs.  So they're with me on treatment and

 18  they're with me on understanding what I need to do and

 19  they're going to help me seek treatment programs when I

 20  get out.

 21                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And do you plan

 22  to attend anything like AA or NA once you're released?

 23                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah.  I read one time

 24  in a pamphlet saying that your chances of relapsing drop

 25  dramatically if you attend an NA meeting or an AA meeting
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 01  your first day out of incarceration.  So actually one of my

 02  plans is on February 13th -- and I actually have my family

 03  looking it up now, on a place where I can go to a meeting

 04  so I can continue with my sobriety.

 05                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Well, Ms. Jones,

 06  do you have any questions that you'd like to ask?

 07                           MS. JONES:  I have a few questions

 08  that I would like to ask for clarification.  Give me just

 09  one moment, please.

 10                           You may have answered this, sir,

 11  but when you said that you were arrested for your DUI, what

 12  were you under the influence of at that time?

 13                           MR. MOHAMED:  Alcohol.

 14                           MS. JONES:  Okay.  Alcohol only?

 15                           MR. MOHAMED:  I'm sure I was using

 16  prescription painkillers as well.

 17                           MS. JONES:  And just so that I

 18  am clear because all of your convictions happened at the

 19  same time, but the infractions were on separate dates --

 20                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah.

 21                           MS. JONES:  I'm sorry.

 22                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Can you just

 23  pause for a second and let her finish her question, please.

 24                           MS. JONES:  So you received a

 25  deferred finding for the initial 2015 -- '14, excuse me,
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 01  incident and you were imposed a fine of $498.  Did you repay

 02  those fines?

 03                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes.  I'm currently

 04  up to balance.  I owe no fines.

 05                           MS. JONES:  Okay.  So you've

 06  satisfied all of your fines.

 07                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yeah, all of my fines

 08  are paid not only for the 2014 charge but for every charge

 09  after that.

 10                           MS. JONES:  Thank you.

 11                           Now, I thought that I heard you

 12  say that you were not convicted of manufacturing or you were

 13  not manufacturing a controlled substance for your final

 14  conviction?

 15                           MR. MOHAMED:  When you say

 16  manufacture, I believe the title of the charge is manufacturing

 17  and I believe it all falls under the same category, but I

 18  personally never manufactured any drugs.  That's how I took

 19  the question, as a literal question.  But I believe if the

 20  charge says manufacturing, then I'm sure guilty of it, but I

 21  personally never manufactured.

 22                           I believe it's just the same title

 23  of manufacturing and distribution.  I believe it falls

 24  under the same header.

 25                           MS. JONES:  Okay.  The reason
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 01  that I'm asking is because in 2016 you were convicted of

 02  the, I guess, the distribution for profit, which is different

 03  than the manufacturing charge.  So I'm just trying to understand

 04  if you're saying that you did not manufacture however you

 05  do have a conviction for manufacturing.  So -- oh, and I

 06  have one other follow-up question for you once you answer that.

 07                           MR. MOHAMED:  I mean, I believe --

 08  yeah, it says here manufacture controlled substance.  I

 09  believe that was the title of the charge.  So I believe,

 10  yeah, if I'm convicted of it, yes, ma'am, but it was a

 11  distribution charge.

 12                           MS. JONES:  Okay.  I believe on your

 13  application that you only listed two of the three charges --

 14  I mean convictions.  Just one moment.  I'm flipping through.

 15                           MR. SANDERS:  Ma'am, if I may weigh in?

 16                           MS. JONES:  Yes, sir.

 17                           MR. SANDERS:  I just noticed the

 18  code 18.2-248.  That charge, particular one covers

 19  manufacturing, distribution.  It also covers possession

 20  with intent.  It also covers under that -- that particular

 21  code does cover all of those charges, so they may be using

 22  the nomenclature of manufacturing.

 23                           He's looking at his --

 24                           MR. MOHAMED:  I believe, I believe

 25  it's just what they use as the header because I'm looking
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 01  here at my police criminal history and they both say

 02  distribution or sale on the date of December 31, 2016 as

 03  well as when I got sentenced on 11/20/2017 and that's from

 04  the charge from January.

 05                           I just believe it's a -- I don't

 06  want to say incorrect, but I am convicted here for distribution

 07  charges.

 08                           MS. JONES:  All right.  And my

 09  follow-up question was can you please clarify for the

 10  record what you meant when you said a controlled buy?

 11                           MR. MOHAMED:  So a controlled buy

 12  is the understanding of the acquaintance of mine was working

 13  for the district of Loudoun County as a paid informant.

 14  So when I met up with him and we were hanging out and I

 15  ended up giving him the narcotics, they considered that

 16  it was a controlled buy because they actually set up the

 17  meeting, which at that time I didn't have that knowledge,

 18  but that whole meeting between me and him was actually a

 19  setup by the police department.  Or the sheriff's office

 20  I should say.

 21                           MS. JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.

 22                           MR. MOHAMED:  Yes, ma'am.

 23                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  If there's

 24  nothing further, I'm going to go ahead and explain the

 25  process going forward.
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 01                           Based upon everything I've heard and

 02  everything I've read, I'll put my thoughts together into a

 03  written recommendation.  The department will mail you a copy

 04  of my recommendation along with a letter letting you know

 05  the date and time where the full board will meet to make

 06  a final decision concerning your application.

 07                           That meeting will probably occur

 08  prior to your being released from incarceration, but you're

 09  welcome to attend that board meeting but you do not have to.

 10  If you do attend the board member, the board will give you an

 11  opportunity of about five minutes to address the full board

 12  before they make their final decision.

 13                           Generally what happens is the board

 14  would briefly hear from you, they'll discuss your case and

 15  then they'll vote right then and there that day.  So if you

 16  were attending the board meeting, you would know the final

 17  outcome concerning your application that day, but if you

 18  choose not to attend or you're unable to do so, the board

 19  will still follow up with you in writing a couple of days

 20  after the board meeting.

 21                           One thing you need to understand

 22  is I can recommend yes and the full board could say no or the

 23  other way around.  It's a majority vote of the entire board

 24  that makes the final decision.

 25                           At this time, do you have any
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 01  additional questions for me?

 02                           MR. MOHAMED:  No, ma'am.

 03                           MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  If there's

 04  nothing further, then I'll thank you for your time and I

 05  will conclude the conference.

 06                           NOTE:  The hearing concluded at

 07  1:51 p.m.

 08                     HEARING CONCLUDED

 09  

 10  

 11  

 12  

 13  

 14  

 15  

 16  

 17  

 18  

 19  

 20  

 21  

 22  

 23  

 24  

 25  
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 02  
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 01                           NOTE:  The hearing commences at

 02  1:00 p.m., as follows:

 03                       MS. DUNCAN:  Before we proceed, I

 04  would like to note for the record that in preparation

 05  for today's IFF I reviewed the file including the

 06  letters of recommendation provided by Mr. Lynch.

 07                       One of those letters marked Exhibit

 08  1 was prepared by my supervisor, James Grandstaff, WRF

 09  Division Director for Henrico County.

 10                       Due to my connection with Mr.

 11  Grandstaff, I am unable to consider or give any weight

 12  to his letter of his recommendation when making my

 13  recommendation to the Board.

 14                       I want to ask the applicant at this

 15  time, Mr. Lynch, do you understand that when making my

 16  recommendation to the Board that I will not be able to

 17  consider Mr. Grandstaff's letter?

 18                       MR. LYNCH:  Yes, ma'am.  I

 19  understand that.

 20                       MS. DUNCAN:  All right.  Knowing

 21  that, do you still wish to move forward with the IFF

 22  conference today?

 23                       MR. LYNCH:  Yes, I do.  Sorry for

 24  the background noise.

 25                       MS. DUNCAN:  Additionally, I would
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 01  like to point out that while I cannot consider the

 02  letter when I make my recommendation, the letter has

 03  been made part of the agency record.

 04                       It will be presented to the other

 05  Board members so they can consider it.

 06                       MR. LYNCH:  Okay.

 07                       MS. DUNCAN:  The reason that you're

 08  appearing for an informal fact-finding conference today

 09  is that you applied for licensure; however, you have

 10  requested a waiver of the examination requirement.

 11                       We have convened this conference to

 12  get the facts and circumstances surrounding your

 13  application.  We will talk a little bit about your

 14  experience and work history and then your plans moving

 15  forward if granted licensure.

 16                       MR. LYNCH:  Okay.  Sounds good.

 17                       MS. DUNCAN:  All right.  I guess we

 18  just jump in.

 19                       MS. PETERSON:  I have my part that I

 20  need to say.

 21                       MS. DUNCAN:  Okay.

 22                       MS. PETERSON:  All right.  So my

 23  name is Monique Peterson and I'm a post-adjudication and

 24  licensing specialist with the Department of Professional

 25  and Occupational Regulation, and I'll be assisting Mr.
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 01  Duncan with the IFF conference today.

 02                       Besides me and Ms. Duncan here

 03  today, we also have Julie Jackson-Bailey who is the

 04  Director of Post-adjudication and Licensing at the

 05  Department of Professional Occupational and Regulations.

 06                       She's just here observing, and I

 07  also have Terrance Deanes who's another post-

 08  adjudication and licensing specialist and he's observing

 09  as well.

 10                       We also have a court reporter.  The

 11  court reporter will make a transcript of everything that

 12  is said, and that transcript will become a part of your

 13  file.

 14                       Before we start, I have a few

 15  housekeeping matters.  Please speak slowly and clearly

 16  so the court reporter can make an accurate transcript.

 17                       Additionally, if I or Ms. Duncan are

 18  asking a question, please allow us to ask the entire

 19  question before answering.  This is important because

 20  not only will Ms. Duncan read the transcript after

 21  today's informal fact-finding conference, but it will be

 22  provided to all the members of the Board as they review

 23  your application and Ms. Duncan's recommendation.

 24                       Finally, you may hear someone

 25  interrupt you as you provide informal fact-finding
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 01  testimony.  Most likely that is the court reporter

 02  wanting clarification as to what was just said.

 03                       So if you hear someone attempting to

 04  interrupt you, please stop providing testimony so we can

 05  clear up any issues for the court reporter.

 06                       This is to ensure that we have an

 07  accurate transcript.  So if you could please state your

 08  full name and mailing address for the record.

 09                       MR. LYNCH:  My name is Theodore

 10  Jason Lynch.  I reside at 40 Fairfield Court, Angier,

 11  A-N-G-I-E-R, North Carolina 27501.

 12                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.  Thank you.

 13  Now, I'll introduce the exhibits.  Board Exhibit 1 is

 14  the informal fact-finding conference memorandum along

 15  with the application and supporting documents.

 16                       Board Exhibit 2 is an e-mail

 17  confirming attendance at the IFF conference dated August

 18  22nd, 2022.  Board Exhibit 3 is the notice of informal

 19  fact-finding conference dated August 23rd, 2022 and

 20  notice of delivery dated August 24th, 2022.

 21                       Lynch Exhibit 1 is a letter of

 22  support from James Grandstaff, WRF Division Director,

 23  dated September 26th, 2022.  Lynch Exhibit 2 is a letter

 24  of support from F. Paul Calamita, C-A-L-A-M-I-T-A,

 25  chairman of Aqualaw one word, dated September 6th, 2022,
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 01  and Lynch Exhibit 3 is a resume provided by Mr. Lynch.

 02  Those are all of the exhibits.

 03                            NOTE:  The above referred to

 04  documents are now being marked as Board Exhibit Nos. 1

 05  through 3 and Lynch Exhibit Nos. 1 and 2, respectively.

 06                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.  Back to you,

 07  Ms. Duncan.

 08                       MS. DUNCAN:  Thank you.  The reason

 09  you're appearing for an informal fact-finding conference

 10  today is that you applied for licensure; however, you

 11  requested a waiver of the examination requirement.

 12                       We have convened this conference to

 13  get the facts and circumstances surrounding your

 14  application.  We will talk a little bit about your

 15  experience and work history and then your plans moving

 16  forward if granted licensure.

 17                       The first question is -- I know you

 18  provided a resume to us but can you walk me through your

 19  work history?

 20                       MR. LYNCH:  Absolutely.  First, --

 21  first, let me say, Erica, and others, I apologize for

 22  all this -- I really didn't realize that it was going to

 23  take this much effort on you all's part to make this

 24  happen, but -- but I do appreciate it.

 25                       Now, first of all, getting to my
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 01  work history, I started in the wastewater industry back

 02  in 1992.  When I went to work for the town of Cary in

 03  Cary, North Carolina.

 04                       At the time that -- that treatment

 05  plant was a 6.4 NGD extended aeration plant with UV

 06  disinfection for the purpose of basically BOD, TSS and

 07  ammonia removal.

 08                       But I started at that plant as a

 09  summer intern.  I was 19 years old and very quickly

 10  learned that it was a business that interested me.  I

 11  was really in -- I was really driven by the science, and

 12  I started staying after work and making rounds with the

 13  operator to learn what was going on.

 14                       And when a full-time position became

 15  available, I applied so I became -- I started in the

 16  maintenance group, did a lot of maintenance of all the

 17  equipment, replaced gear boxes, motors, repaired pumps,

 18  a bunch of different work.

 19                       And then after about a year in

 20  maintenance an opportunity became available in

 21  operations because I was very interested in the process,

 22  and I saw that as the path for I guess moving up if you

 23  will.

 24                       I applied for the operations

 25  position and at that time I had no certification.  The
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 01  operations supervisor gave me one opportunity to pass

 02  the exam, the grade 2 exam.

 03                       In North Carolina the grades are 1,

 04  2, 3 and 4 with 1 being the lowest grade and 4 being the

 05  highest grade, so it's the opposite in Virginia in

 06  comparison.

 07                       So I had to pass the grade 2

 08  basically if I accepted the job and I had one

 09  opportunity to do it.  I felt like it was the right

 10  thing to do.

 11                       I went to a regional school which

 12  was like a three-month wastewater school and then I

 13  applied to take the grade 2 exam skipping the grade 1

 14  which you could do at that time, and I took the grade 2

 15  exam and I passed it fortunately, was able to keep my

 16  job in wastewater.

 17                       And that was kind of the beginning.

 18  I was the shift operator working 12-hour shifts, and

 19  most of that time by myself because of the 12-hour shift

 20  and was an operator for about three or four years before

 21  a position or an opportunity came available to be

 22  promoted at the same facility but this time to the chief

 23  operator position.

 24                       They changed the title to chief of

 25  ONM at that time so I -- I applied for that job and got
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 01  it and became the -- the plant basically operations

 02  supervisor and the maintenance supervisor rolled into

 03  one.

 04                       I had responsibility for every --

 05  every activity that happened in the plant with the

 06  exception of personnel decisions which was the

 07  superintendent's responsibility.

 08                       He -- and I reported to that person

 09  and, you know, he had general oversight of the facility

 10  but I had the day-to-day activities.  I did that for

 11  about six years if I remember right.

 12                       I should be looking at my --

 13  actually, yeah, about six years before the

 14  superintendent position opened up with City of Raleigh,

 15  and then, you know, that was a big job.

 16                       That was the City of Raleigh's

 17  wastewater plant.  The Neuse river facility is -- it's

 18  currently a 75 NGD plant.  At that time it was a 60 NGD

 19  which was one of the largest in the State of North

 20  Carolina at the time.

 21                       And I was very fortunate to get that

 22  job keeping in mind that -- and so that was in January

 23  of 2003 I started with the City of Raleigh.  In 2002,

 24  the Neuse River wastewater plant made I think the front

 25  page of the local news and observer of the local
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 01  newspaper like almost 60 times for bypasses and over

 02  application of biosolids, just lots of things going

 03  wrong at that plant.

 04                       So I was hired into a -- I was

 05  stepping into a difficult situation but felt like there

 06  was nowhere to go but up and was able to turn that

 07  facility around as the plant manager.

 08                       Happy to report that in my entire

 09  time of responsibility over that facility and two others

 10  in Raleigh for 20 years did not experience a single

 11  permit violation even though we had pretty stringent

 12  permit limits and a -- and a nitrogen TMDL for the Neuse

 13  River basin.

 14                       But -- so I was a plant manager I

 15  think for about nine years, and then there was another

 16  opportunity to be promoted to assistant director for the

 17  department in the City of Raleigh Department of Public

 18  Utilities now known as Raleigh Water.

 19                       But -- and that -- that position

 20  entailed the addition -- additional responsibility of

 21  the collection system.  So by the time I retired in

 22  November 30th, 2022, for the City of Raleigh, I was

 23  responsible for 175 MGD water resource recovery

 24  facility, one 2.4 MGD facility and one MGD facility, so

 25  three wastewater plants, 120 odd remote pump stations at
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 01  2500 miles of sanitary sewer collection pipe in four

 02  states.

 03                       So basically everything wastewater

 04  in the City of Raleigh, towns of Knightdale, Wendell,

 05  Zebulon, Wake Forest, Rolesville, and Garner were all my

 06  responsibility.

 07                       So I did that job until I retired in

 08  November 30th of 2022, so I did that job for an

 09  additional I think like -- something like six or seven

 10  years.  So that pretty much sums up my municipal career.

 11                       When I retired in November, I had a

 12  number of opportunities to go to one of several

 13  different consulting firms, environmental consulting

 14  firms.  I interviewed with three firms as well as a

 15  construction company.

 16                       And they -- they wanted -- they

 17  wanted, you know, to hire me for, one, you know,

 18  marketing.  While -- while working in the municipal

 19  business I -- I was -- I put myself under a lot.

 20                       I served on the North Carolina

 21  AWWAWEA Board of Trustees for seven years in three

 22  different roles.  I was the president of the North

 23  Carolina Water Quality Association.

 24                       So safe to say that I was fairly

 25  well known and fairly well known around the state of
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 01  North Carolina for wastewater treatment, and so this

 02  firm's and that construction company wanted -- wanted

 03  that marketing, you know, those contacts, and also my

 04  ability to conduct operative building reviews on -- on

 05  their designs as well as condition assessment work,

 06  operational process troubleshooting, staffing

 07  evaluations, a number -- a number of different things

 08  that I'm currently doing for -- for Hazen.

 09                       Hazen and Sawyer is who I chose as

 10  the firm to work for because I just simply worked with

 11  them a lot as a client and really appreciated what they

 12  brought to the table.

 13                       So I've been doing that now since

 14  late December.  I think December 30th was my start date

 15  2022 to now.  Since being with Hazen I have worked as a

 16  wastewater consultant in California, Florida, Virginia,

 17  Maryland, North Carolina just traveling to plants and

 18  helping where, you know, either doing condition

 19  assessments or doing operational process trouble

 20  shooting.

 21                       One of my first assignments and

 22  probably the longest assignment I've had to date was in

 23  Baltimore.  A lot -- if you're in the wastewater

 24  industry, you know the City of Baltimore is struggling

 25  to meet permit limits.
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 01                       So I spent quite a bit of time at

 02  their 78 MGD Patapso wastewater treatment plant and also

 03  did a condition assessment at the Back River which is

 04  170 something MGD, did a condition assessment for that

 05  facility as well as the process evaluations.

 06                       So trying to help get Baltimore back

 07  into compliance and protect the Chesapeake Bay which I

 08  know is probably near and dear to your hearts in -- for

 09  some of you in Virginia.

 10                       But anyway, that's -- that's -- that

 11  kind of sums up I think my experience in the wastewater

 12  industry over the past 30 years.

 13                       MS. PETERSON:  Mr. Lynch, just for

 14  clarity, you stated that you retired in November 20 --

 15  November of 2022.  Did you mean 2021?

 16                       MR. LYNCH:  Yes, I did.

 17                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.

 18                       MR. LYNCH:  Thank you.

 19                       MS. PETERSON:  And then you said

 20  December of 2022 for something else previously.  I just

 21  want to make sure the date is correct.

 22                       MR. LYNCH:  That should be December

 23  of 20 -- December 30th, 2021, is when I started with

 24  Hazen and Sawyer.

 25                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.  Thank you.
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 01                       MR. LYNCH:  I was off by a year.

 02  Sorry about that.

 03                       MS. PETERSON:  No problem.  Ms.

 04  Duncan, you can continue.

 05                       MS. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Mr. Lynch, you

 06  mentioned when you got your class 2 license.  Did you

 07  get your class 3 and 4 license while you were on shift

 08  as well?

 09                       MR. LYNCH:  I did.  Yes.  I very

 10  quickly got the grade 3 and the grade 4 while I was a --

 11  while I was a shift operator.

 12                       In fact, in North Carolina -- North

 13  Carolina has a program where you can take the

 14  certifications before you even meet the experience

 15  requirement, and then when you meet the experience

 16  requirement, you submit an application for the

 17  certification saying that you met the experience

 18  requirement, and they have on record that you passed the

 19  exam.

 20                       If you passed the exam, then they

 21  will send you the actual certification.  It's called the

 22  operator in training program.

 23                       MS. DUNCAN:  Thank you.

 24                       MR. LYNCH:  So I'm a grade 4 OIT.

 25                       MS. DUNCAN:  All right.  You
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 01  currently are licensed in the State of North Carolina.

 02  Have you ever been licensed in any other state?

 03                       MR. LYNCH:  No, I have not.

 04                       MS. DUNCAN:  And you discussed this

 05  previously.  Can you recall how long you held your class

 06  4 North Carolina wastewater license?

 07                       MR. LYNCH:  I have it hanging on the

 08  wall in front of me.  Let's see.  The date on it is

 09  October 16th, 1995.

 10                       MS. DUNCAN:  Thank you.  Have any of

 11  your licenses been subject to professional discipline?

 12                       MR. LYNCH:  No.

 13                       MS. DUNCAN:  Can you briefly speak

 14  to us as why you're asking for the examination to be

 15  waived?

 16                       MR. LYNCH:  Yes.  I just feel like

 17  with the experience that I have taking -- taking a test

 18  to prove my knowledge just -- it just doesn't make sense

 19  to me.

 20                       I think in -- I think today with the

 21  -- with the shortage of operators that we have in our

 22  states, the demand for operators, I think the state

 23  should be making it easier for operators.

 24                       There should be more reciprocal

 25  agreements between states for operators to travel from
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 01  state to state just -- just to help -- just to help with

 02  the problems, the shortage of operator problems that

 03  we're having, that we're seeing.

 04                       And, you know, if I can open that

 05  door a little bit, that's -- that's fine.

 06                       MS. DUNCAN:  In regards to your

 07  experience looking at your resume, I see two awards that

 08  you received.  Can you tell us when you got the awards

 09  and what they signify?

 10                       MR. LYNCH:  Okay.  Sure.  So I also

 11  have them hanging on the wall here, and in 2010, I was

 12  presented the William D. Hatfield award which is a wet

 13  water environment federation award which is an

 14  international federation, but the award is for

 15  outstanding performance and professionalism in the

 16  operation of a wastewater treatment facility.  I'm

 17  reading directly from the award.

 18                       In 2019, I was awarded the Arthur

 19  Sydney Bedell award, and that was basically an

 20  acknowledgement of extraordinary personal service to a

 21  member of the association.  I think that was related to

 22  the work I did for AWW and WEA.

 23                       MS. DUNCAN:  Thank you.  What are

 24  your plans moving forward if granted licensure in the

 25  Commonwealth of Virginia?
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 01                       MR. LYNCH:  My plans moving forward

 02  are to continue working as a consultant with Hazen and

 03  Sawyer.  There are some cities within the State of

 04  Virginia who like to have a licensed operator on the --

 05  on the engineering staff for -- for obvious reasons, for

 06  just knowledge of regulatory requirements, start up in

 07  conditioning, those sorts of things.

 08                       And so as long as those requirements

 09  are showing up in the -- in the documents and that sort

 10  of thing, you know, we need to -- we need to comply with

 11  those.  So I'm trying to help with the company by being

 12  a Virginia -- a licensed operator in Virginia.

 13                       MS. DUNCAN:  Thank you.  Is there

 14  anything else you would like to add that I have not

 15  asked about today?

 16                       MR. LYNCH:  I -- I can't think -- I

 17  can't think of anything else.  I think -- I think

 18  honestly -- I think the biggest thing, I mean, I've been

 19  doing biological nutrient removal which, you know, is --

 20  is the treatment technology if you will in terms of

 21  meeting our -- our nutrient limits.

 22                       I've been doing it for over 20

 23  years.  Neuse River -- the Neuse River basin was one of

 24  the first TMDLs in the country for nitrogen and so we've

 25  been doing it for a long time.
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 01                       In fact, I remember talking to the

 02  folks in the Chesapeake Bay when they were beginning to

 03  talk about the TMDL for the Chesapeake Bay, and so they

 04  -- there's been some notes from us.

 05                       I think you all ended up doing it a

 06  little bit differently, but that's okay, and it was --

 07  it's all good as long as we're protecting the

 08  environment.

 09                       And I think -- I think that if

 10  you're looking for proof of knowledge in terms of

 11  wastewater treatment, I think the proof is in the

 12  pudding, right.  I think the proof is in the performance

 13  and in a particular -- in my history of performance in

 14  this industry.

 15                       I have a very good reputation in

 16  North Carolina for being a good -- a good plant manager,

 17  a good process guy, and I just would love to see that

 18  carry over to Virginia in terms of recognition of that

 19  knowledge just from -- from the body of work.  I think

 20  that's it.

 21                       MS. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Thank you.  I

 22  think that wraps it up well.  Thank you, Mr. Lynch.

 23  Turning over to the staff member.

 24                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.  I know you

 25  answered this on your application, but to have it on the
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 01  record, have you ever been convicted of any felonies or

 02  misdemeanors?

 03                       MR. LYNCH:  No.

 04                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.  And, Mr.

 05  Deanes, do you have any questions?

 06                       MR. LYNCH:  Did you say

 07  misdemeanors?

 08                       MS. PETERSON:  Yes.

 09                       MR. LYNCH:  Did you say

 10  misdemeanors?

 11                       MS. PETERSON:  Yes.

 12                       MR. LYNCH:  Is a speeding ticket a

 13  misdemeanor?

 14                       MS. PETERSON:  No.

 15                       MR. LYNCH:  I thought a speeding

 16  ticket was a misdemeanor.  I have gotten speeding

 17  tickets in Virginia.

 18                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.  Mr. Deanes, do

 19  you have any questions?

 20                       MR. DEANES:  Yes, I do.  Have you

 21  applied for licensing in another state?  I understand

 22  that you're not licensed in another state, but have you

 23  applied for licensing in another state?

 24                       MR. LYNCH:  I have not.  I -- I

 25  considered applying in Maryland because of the work I

�0022

 01  was doing in Baltimore.  It wasn't required, but

 02  Maryland I believe has an open -- open reciprocity.

 03                       If you're licensed in another state,

 04  I believe it's almost automatic in Maryland that you

 05  could get a license.  I just didn't pursue it.  I'm not

 06  sure why, but Virginia is a neighboring state to North

 07  Carolina.  It's a little more important.

 08                       MR. DEANES:  Okay.  Thank you.  And

 09  just summarizing some of your earlier testimony, you

 10  indicated that you feel like an exam doesn't make sense

 11  in your situation because of your experience and also

 12  because there's an operator -- operator shortage and

 13  that Virginia should make the process easier in light of

 14  these facts.  And looking at the --

 15                       MR. LYNCH:  Yeah, -- I'm sorry.  Go

 16  ahead.

 17                       MR. DEANES:  I'm not done.  Thank

 18  you.  Virginia does have a process for you to follow,

 19  and I'm looking at an e-mail that was dated June the 3rd

 20  of 2022, and it's from Theodore -- it's to you, Theodore

 21  Lynch, and it's from the Department of Professional and

 22  Occupational Regulation Wastewater and Works, OS -- an

 23  OSSP Board and it indicates -- I'm not going to read the

 24  whole thing but I have a portion highlighted.

 25                       It says when reading the regulations
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 01  from North Carolina it appears that the WW dash it looks

 02  like Roman numeral four license you hold is considered

 03  North Carolina's highest level of certification, and you

 04  also took the North Carolina state exam.

 05                       While Virginia does not have

 06  reciprocity with any other state, we will review the

 07  other state's experience and examination requirements

 08  for equivalency to Virginia's requirements in order to

 09  qualify you for the class one license and not have you

 10  take the class one examination North Carolina would have

 11  to submit to us information in regards to their

 12  examination.

 13                       This would include your exam results

 14  and information on the examination.  The exam would have

 15  to be equivalent to Virginia's Board approved

 16  examination given by ABC.

 17                       We would send your exam information

 18  to our examination section for evaluation of the North

 19  Carolina examination taken to see if it is equivalent to

 20  our class one exam.

 21                       If you would like us to consider

 22  this, please have North Carolina send us your

 23  examination information.  Did you ever submit that

 24  information to the Board?

 25                       MR. LYNCH:  I did not.  I did not.
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 01  I think when I got that -- that e-mail it was the same

 02  time I had gotten -- well, the comments that you made,

 03  how do you determine -- how do you determine that an

 04  exam is equivalent or not to the exam?

 05                        When you compare those exams from

 06  North Carolina to the exams in Virginia, how do you know

 07  that they're not equivalent to each other?  What is the

 08  determining factor for that?

 09                       MR. DEANES:  Well, that would be a

 10  question for the Board, but my question to you was did

 11  you submit that information when you were advised that

 12  you had that opportunity to do so in order to avoid

 13  taking the examination?

 14                       MR. LYNCH:  I did not submit that

 15  and I may have misunderstood.  I may have misunderstood

 16  that direction because I don't recall that to be honest

 17  with you, that I could submit -- and -- and I don't -- I

 18  mean, with as much turnover as we've had in the state

 19  Government in North Carolina I don't know that there's

 20  -- if they would even be able to get that information,

 21  but -- but I'm happy to do it.

 22                       I can do that.  I just -- you know,

 23  I think I was far more frustrated with the response that

 24  I got from Virginia by, you know, saying -- by declaring

 25  that they weren't equivalent.
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 01                       And, actually, what I recall reading

 02  was -- is that the North Carolina exam was not

 03  equivalent to the ABC exam for Virginia, and, you know,

 04  if that was -- let me try to find that e-mail.

 05                       MR. DEANES:  I have that.

 06                       MR. LYNCH:  Can you turn -- if you

 07  have it in front of you, can you --

 08                       MR. DEANES:  I have that letter.

 09                       MR. LYNCH:  Is that what it said?

 10                       MR. DEANES:  Yes.  It says --

 11                       MR. LYNCH:  Did it say that it was

 12  not --

 13                       MR. DEANES:  On Tuesday, May 24,

 14  2022, the Board sent an e-mail to you and it stated if

 15  you would like to continue -- and pertinent part from

 16  the application process for a class two operator, please

 17  notify the Board by relying to this e-mail.

 18                       In addition, your state examination

 19  is not equivalent to our ABC examination; therefore, if

 20  your application is approved --

 21                       Mr.  LYNCH:  So that's what I

 22  recall.

 23                       MR. DEANES:  -- you would need to

 24  sit for the class two examination.

 25                       MR. LYNCH:  That's what I recall.  I
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 01  do recall that, and so would you not say that basically

 02  is already saying that the North Carolina exam is not

 03  equivalent?  I mean, so --

 04                       MR. DEANES:  I understand what

 05  you're saying, but the date of that e-mail is May 24,

 06  2022, and then you were sent another e-mail after that

 07  on June 3rd, 2022.

 08                       And that's the one that gave you

 09  opportunity to send the North Carolina information to

 10  Virginia, so when they --

 11                       MR. LYNCH:  Okay.

 12                       MR. DEANES:  And let me ask you

 13  this.  When they advised you that the North Carolina

 14  exam wasn't equivalent to the Virginia ABC examination,

 15  did you submit any -- any documentation to refute that

 16  or to support your position that you should not have to

 17  take the exam?

 18                       MR. LYNCH:  I did not submit any --

 19  any exam information.  I would have had to try to

 20  navigate the State of North Carolina's examination group

 21  or education group, and -- and honestly there's so much

 22  turnover there I don't even know who's there anymore.

 23                       I don't even know who to call, but I

 24  can figure that out and I can -- I can still try to do

 25  that if you think -- if you think that's worthwhile, but
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 01  I felt like the body of work, my resume, and what I've

 02  done over my career honestly should speak louder than --

 03  than comparing two exams.

 04                       MR. DEANES:  Thank you very much.  I

 05  don't have any other questions.

 06                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.  Ms. Duncan, do

 07  you have anything else?

 08                       MS. DUNCAN:  I'm reviewing some

 09  paperwork real quick.

 10                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.

 11                       MS. DUNCAN:  No.  I don't have any

 12  further questions.

 13                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.  If there's

 14  nothing further, please let me explain the process from

 15  today moving forward.

 16                       Based on everything she has heard

 17  and everything she has read, Board member Duncan will

 18  put her thoughts together into a written recommendation.

 19                       The Department will mail you a copy

 20  of that recommendation along with a letter letting you

 21  know the date and time that the full Board will meet to

 22  make a decision concerning your application, which is

 23  generally 30 to 45 days.

 24                       You're welcome to attend the Board

 25  meeting but you do not have to.  If you do attend the
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 01  Board meeting -- if you do attend the Board meeting, the

 02  Board will give you an opportunity of about five minutes

 03  to address the full Board before they make their final

 04  decision.

 05                       This is an opportunity to speak on

 06  anything in your file including anything we discussed

 07  today or anything that Ms. Duncan mentions in her

 08  recommendation; however, this is not an opportunity to

 09  introduce new evidence into the record.

 10                       Generally what happens is the Board

 11  will briefly hear from you.  They will discuss your case

 12  and they will vote right then and there that day.

 13                       So if you do attend the Board

 14  meeting, you will know the final outcome concerning your

 15  application.  If you choose not to attend or you are

 16  unable to do so, we will still follow up with you by

 17  letter a couple of days after the Board meeting letting

 18  you know what the outcome was.

 19                       One thing you need to understand is

 20  Ms. Duncan could recommend approval and the Board could

 21  vote to deny or Ms. Duncan could recommend denial and

 22  the Board could vote to approve.

 23                       It's the majority vote of the entire

 24  Board that makes the final decision in your case.  Do

 25  you have any further questions for me?

�0029

 01                       MR. LYNCH:  I do.  Can you tell me

 02  when -- the date of that Board meeting?

 03                       MS. PETERSON:  Let me look that up

 04  for you.  That Board meeting is October 27th at 9:30

 05  a.m.

 06                       MR. LYNCH:  Okay.  Thank you.

 07                       MS. PETERSON:  Okay.  If there is

 08  nothing further, then I will thank you for your time and

 09  I will conclude the conference and we are off record.

 10                            NOTE:  The hearing concluded at

 11  1:33 p.m.
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